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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWRE DM

GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to announce the consolidated annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st December, 2016 and report a
consolidated profit after taxation attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$305,586,000 (2015: HK$174,126,000)
and a basic earnings per share of 11.71 HK cents (2015:
6.68 HK cents).

The consolidated profit of the Group for the year under
review was mainly derived from a share of the results of an
associate of the Group. The associate is engaged in property
development and investment in Shanghai and the Group
shared from such associate a profit of HK$187,883,000
(2015: HK$141,306,000).

Furthermore, there was progress in the operating results of
the Group itself for the year under review which was mainly
attributable to the securities trading and investment in Hong
Kong. The Group recorded a net gain in its trading securities
investments of HK$101,220,000 (2015: HK$13,278,000)
and received a dividend income of HK$38,220,000 (2015:
HK$19,118,000) from its long-term securities investment.

In addition, an increase in the gross profit generated from
the property development and investment of the Group in
Shanghai to HK$2,635,000 was recorded for the year under
review (2015: HK$1,374,000).

Apart from the results of the Group’s principal activities, the
Group received an interest income of HK$12,696,000 (2015:
HK$18,834,000) during the year 2016 while an exchange
loss of HK$10,571,000 (2015: HK$14,305,000) arose mainly
from the cash balance in Hong Kong due to the impact of
depreciation of Renminbi. The management has adjusted the
weighting of the cash balance in Renminbi in Hong Kong in
the second-half of 2016 and it is expected that the exchange
loss for the year 2017 will substantially decrease.

As a result, there was an increase of approximately
75.50% in the consolidated profit after tax attributable to
the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 as compared with that for the corresponding
period in 2015.

As at 31st December, 2016, the equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company was HK$2,566,614,000 (2015:
HK$2,232,101,000) in total and approximately HK$0.98
(2015: HK$0.86) per share.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.05 per share for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(2015: HK$0.02 per share). The final dividend would be
payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 6th June,
2017 at 4:30 p.m. subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Dividend warrants are expected to be dispatched on
Thursday, 15th June, 2017.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Property development and investment as well as securities
trading and investment were the principal activities of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2016.

Securities trading and investment in Hong Kong contributed
approximately 99.42% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group and generated a segment profit of
HK$139,028,000 (2015: HK$30,712,000) for the year 2016.
The segment profit was principally attributable to sale of
trading securities investments while dividend receipts were
the secondary source.

Property development and investment in Shanghai
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries accounted for
the remaining approximately 0.58% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations. There was an increase in the
segment revenue for the year under review and a segment
profit of HK$1,131,000 (2015: loss of HK$2,071,000) was
recorded.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd., an
associate of the Group engaged in property development
and investment in Shanghai, was the principal source of profit
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2016 and
contributed a significant profit of HK$187,883,000 (2015:
HK$141,306,000) to the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Rivera (Holdings) Limited
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Shanghai Zhangjiang

(Shanghai Boulevard

Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
FERIMEFAERLT

Residential-cum-Commercial
Development in
Fengxian District, Shanghai

BT EBEZIERBXERER

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden
RISER

Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
FIRETE

ZJ Legend

RIEH

Property Development and Investment

Apart from the property development and investment
business in Shanghai, the Group holds an investment
property and a few properties for sale in Macau. No revenue
was generated from the property portfolio in Macau during
the year under review.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JINAI &£ BA R A ]

Real Estate Co., Limited)
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Car Parking Spaces of
Tomson Beautiful Space
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(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited)

Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited (“Boulevard
Real Estate”), a 93.53%-owned subsidiary of the Company,
holds three hundred-plus car parking spaces in its sole
residential development, namely Tomson Beautiful Space,
in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
(“Zhangjiang Park”). For the year ended 31st December,
2016, operating revenue of Boulevard Real Estate was
derived solely from sale and leasing of the said car parking
spaces, which accounted for approximately 0.58% of the
Group’s gross proceeds from operations of the Group. There
was an increase in the sale proceeds and gross profit of the
car parking spaces. However, as there was a reduction in
cash balance of Boulevard Real Estate after distribution to its
shareholders in the second-half of 2015, the interest income
during the year under review decreased as compared
with that for the corresponding period in 2015. As a result,
Boulevard Real Estate reported a profit before taxation of
HK$5.33 million for the year ended 31st December, 2016
(2015: HK$9.75 million) after taking into account its interest
income.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
(“SZMP”™), in which the Group holds a 37% interest in its
registered capital, is principally engaged in residential, office
and commercial property development and investment in
Shanghai. The residential development project in Fengxian
District, Shanghai was completed in the second-half of the
year 2016 and the sale proceeds of such project could be
recognized in the annual results for 2016 upon delivery
of the units sold to the buyers. In addition, SZMP derived
its revenue from property development and investment
business in Zhangjiang Park. As a result, for the year
ended 31st December, 2016, SZMP reported an increase in
profit to HK$507,793,000 and the Group shared a profit of
HK$187,883,000 (2015: HK$141,306,000).

Development in Fengxian District, Shanghai

SZMP has completed development of a residential-cum-
commercial project on a plot of land in Fengxian District of
Shanghai in the second-half of the year 2016. The project
comprises 20 blocks of apartment buildings of eleven
to twenty-one storeys, a block of commercial-cum-office
building of ten storeys, underground car parks and ancillary
buildings.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

The residential project is named Tomson Ginkgo Garden
and there are 1,244 residential units with total adjusted
saleable gross floor area of approximately 144,100 square
meters. All these residential units were contracted for sale.
SZMP commenced delivery of the residential units sold
to the buyers from December 2016 onwards and part of
the sale proceeds were therefore recognized in the results
for the year 2016. This project was the principal source of
revenue of SZMP for the year under review and accounted for
approximately 87.52% of the turnover of SZMP.

The commercial-cum-office building with total gross floor
area of approximately 11,000 square meters is retained for
leasing.

7

Commercial-cum-office Building

[0iE AN

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIVA BB R A A
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden
RISERE

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

SZMP has completed a residential development project in
Zhangjiang Park, namely Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, in four
phases. All residential units earmarked for sale have been
sold out.

SZMP retains residential gross floor area of approximately
65,400 square meters for leasing and holds one thousand-
plus car parking spaces for sale. All residential rentable
rooms were leased out as at 31st December, 2016 and
there were sales of five hundred-plus car parking spaces
during the year under review. This project accounted for
approximately 5.88% of the turnover of SZMP for the year
2016.

RITIEBEFE

MEFERRE DM ERIERANZE
TERER BRAKILGERE -FERKEIE
HERGZETEMNHEEL -

B8 R EIRE K65,400°F oK 2 EEE
EERFHERS  UHA — T2 EFEELF
HERZ - R-_T—R"F+-_A=+—H'B
HEmEAHEEZEEFME BMEFER
ARNEEFEELERAZEEEN %A R
ERMEFAERRAR T RFEZEREY
5.88% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRR DN
Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port R EFE

SZMP retains 7 blocks of office buildings in Zhangjiang mﬂlé‘% BRBRE BﬁﬁlﬁlﬁﬁqZ@E/ﬂ/ﬂ(%
Micro-electronics Port situated in Zhangjiang Park for leasing R EERAKEERER R N_E—KF
purpose. As at 31st December, 2016, the total rentable + A=+—8" T’Eﬁ%&#)#“*ﬁﬁﬁz—ﬁ
gross floor area for commercial and office purposes of HEREMEIEL0,200F FKE 2L
approximately 90,200 square meters were fully let out, HMETFTAERRNRLEFEE 2 EETEE MY
contributing approximately 5.48% of the turnover of SZMP for 5.48% -

the year under review.

!rl -J;'ﬂ |IIIE-5 i Xy .
i” Big ””ull
EIEE lilllfl

Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
BIMETE
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ZJ Legend
RILEH

ZJ Legend

ZJ Legend (formerly known as Shanghai Chuan Qi), a
commercial centre in Zhangjiang Park, provides total gross
floor area of approximately 26,300 square meters for leasing
purpose and an occupancy rate of approximately 97% was
recorded as at 31st December, 2016. The income generated
from the commercial centre accounted for approximately
1.12% of the turnover of SZMP for the year under review.
Food and beverage outlets are the major tenants of the
commercial centre, occupying approximately 53% of the
leased area while entertainment businesses rank as the
secondary tenants, taking up approximately 26% of the
leased area.

In addition, SZMP possesses a land bank with a site area
of around 15,000 square meters in Zhangjiang Park for
development of Phase 2 of the commercial centre.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Securities Trading and Investment

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong
Kong for trading and long-term investment purposes.
Securities trading and investment was the principal source of
both gross proceeds from operations and operating profit of
the Group for the year under review.

Held-for-trading Investments

All trading securities investments of the Group were listed
in Hong Kong. During the year 2016, revenue derived
from the securities investments held for trading accounted
for approximately 93.39% of the Group’s gross proceeds
from operations. The revenue was attributable to gross
proceeds from disposal of HK$573,615,000 and dividend
receipts of HK$18,016,000. Hence, a total realized gain
of HK$101,446,000 was generated. After taking account
of an unrealized loss on changes in fair value of the
trading securities investments of HK$226,000 according
to applicable accounting standards, a net gain in trading
securities investments of HK$101,220,000 was recorded for
the year under review (2015: HK$13,278,000). As at 31st
December, 2016, the Group had securities investments held
for trading of an aggregate fair value of HK$27,369,000,
representing approximately 1.00% of the Group’s total assets.

Performance of the trading securities investment of the Group
during the year under review by industry classification is set
out below:

As at 31st December, 2016
R-Z-R"E+=ZA=+-H

HBEERKRE

$%?xiéf%lﬁﬁi’éjzm‘%%f’ﬁ%?;&%iﬁ&
B-BPrBEEMERBEIASEROBEFE
ZZ“‘ S SR NEEENME 2 T BHRIR -

HERE

AEBZIBESEEHFRELHRES LT -R
—E-RNEE RAFEEFREZKRAMEAR
5 74L& I 5 42 58 4993.39% © uﬁz)\XQHj
€ FT15 N E 48 58573,615,00058 7T M A% B U A
18,016,000/% 7T ° (A It FEE“L@H&Z@#@
101,446,000/ 7t o &L 5T AR 15 38 A & 5 % B‘J
FECHERFREZATEESMELZ
K10 E 18226, ooo/%mé B[] BB F 8 8% 15
FEFHFKREREFEEI01 ,220,000;‘%%573 (=
T —FHHF:13,278,0008 L) c R T — R F
+ZA=+—RH AEBZHFEFHFREQF
{4258 527,369,000/ 7T 15 AN B 424 FE %)
1.00% ©

REBEFERN AEBEZFER?
DRZRKBDIEIIT

FRERITE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016
BE-E-AF+-A=t-ALFE

Percentage of
total assets Realized  Unrealized
Industry Classification T¥LE Fair value  of the Group gain gain Net gain
EAEE
AVE HEEESL CEERE  AERKS B8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT TR THT THT
Real estate investment trust FBERERETES 15,732 0.572% 4,901 (678) 4,223
Properties and construction MEREE 8,751 0.318% 52,779 387 53,166
Financials - Banks SBE-RT 2,219 0.081% 15,981 50 16,031
Conglomerates BERE 667 0.024% 4,119 15 4134
Information technology BARERE N/A i@ N/A 7@ 23,666 - 23,666
27,369 0.995% 101,446 (226) 101,220

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIVA & BB R A A
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Available-for-sale Investments

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group held a 11.66%
interest in the total issued shares of Tomson Group Limited
(“TGL"), as a long-term investment and the fair value of
such investment amounted to HK$516,000,000, representing
approximately 18.76% of the Group'’s total assets. TGL is a
listed company in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in
property development and investment as well as hospitality
and leisure business in the Mainland. The Group received an
interim dividend from TGL for 2015 of HK$38,220,000 (2015:
HK$19,118,000), which accounted for approximately 6.03%
of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations for the year
under review. In addition, an unrealized gain on change in fair
value of the securities investment in TGL of HK$147,022,000
was credited to the investment revaluation reserve of the
Group as at 31st December, 2016 in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards. It is expected that the
securities investment in TGL will provide a steady dividend
income and potential capital appreciation in the future.

In addition, Boulevard Real Estate has formed a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Shanghai with a registered capital of
RMB50 million to engage in investment management. As at
the end of the year under review, the subsidiary invested a
total of HK$40,689,000, representing approximately 1.48% of
the Group's total assets, in various unlisted partnerships and
companies as long-term investments and it holds less than
10% interest in each entity. The investments were made in
2016 and no profit has been generated during the year under
review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financing and Profitability

There was no change in the Group’s capital structure during
the year ended 31st December, 2016 and the Group's
operations and investments for the year under review
were mainly funded by its cash on hand and revenue from
operations and investing activities.

As at 31st December, 2016, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$1,152,132,000. During the
year under review, the Group generated a net cash inflow
of HK$476,946,000 and HK$42,051,000 from its operating
activities and investing activities respectively. After taking
into account dividend payment of HK$52,171,000 by the
Company, the net cash inflow of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2016 amounted to HK$466,826,000
(2015: HK$27,764,000). The increase in cash balance in
2016 was mainly attributable to sale proceeds of trading
securities investments and receipt of a dividend from SZMP,
an associate of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group had no borrowing as at the end of the
reporting period (2015: Nil). Of the liabilities of the Group,
approximately 69.50% were payable within one year from the
end of the reporting period while the balance was deferred
tax liabilities related to undistributed earnings of SZMP, the
Group’s associate.

In addition, the Group had no capital commitment in respect
of expenditure on property development which had been
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements for
2016 (2015: Nil).

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group recorded a current
ratio of 10.13 times (2015: 9.05 times) and a gearing ratio
(being total liabilities to equity attributable to owners of
the Company) of 6.76% (2015: 7.92%). The improvement
in current ratio was mainly attributable to the receipt of a
dividend from SZMP, the Group’s associate, while the drop in
gearing ratio was mainly attributable to an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company and a drop in tax
payable.

For the year under review, the Group reported a return on
equity (net profit to the average equity, both attributable to
owners of the Company) of 12.74% (2015: 7.89%). The rise in
the return on equity was mainly attributable to a realized gain
in the Group’s securities investments held for trading and an
increase in the Group’s share of profit of an associate.

Charge on Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31st
December, 2016 (2015: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered
by the assets. The depreciation in value of Renminbi may
have an adverse effect on the Group’s results and net asset
value. Nevertheless, all of the other assets and liabilities
of the Group are denominated in either Hong Kong Dollar
or Macau Pataca. Hence, the Group anticipates that the
exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st December,
2016 (2015: Nil).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operation results and
business prospects may be directly or indirectly affected
by a number of risks and uncertainties including business
risks, operational risks, financial risk and changes of local
laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
Information on the estimation uncertainty, capital risk
management and financial risk management is respectively
set out in Notes 4, 5 and 6(b) to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year under review on pages
84 to 90. Currency risk to the cash balance denominated in
Renminbi and equity price risk exposed to the listed equity
investments are considered to be the principal factors
affecting the Group'’s operation results and financial situation.
The Company reduced the weighting of the cash balance
in Renminbi in Hong Kong in 2016 so as to mitigate the
potential currency risk and the management will continue
to monitor and manage the Group’s securities trading and
investment portfolio with caution.

PROSPECTS

The Group will keep property development and investment
as well as securities trading and investment as its principal
operating activities.

Residential properties for the middle-class and commercial-
cum-office properties in the Mainland are the target business
segments of the Group. It is anticipated that the property
development and investment business of SZMP, the Group's
associate, will remain the major profit contributor of the Group
in 2017. Tomson Ginkgo Garden, the residential project in
Fengxian District of Shanghai, will be the principal source of
revenue for SZMP since sale proceeds will be recognized
upon delivery of the units sold to the buyers.

It is expected that the global and Hong Kong financial
markets will remain relatively volatile in 2017. The
management will closely monitor market conditions and
will remain cautious in managing the Group’s securities
trading and investment portfolio so as to maximize its return
to the shareholders. The Group will seek out appropriate
opportunities to expand its investment in the property
sector and will also aim at investment in high-yield listed
securities for stable recurrent income and long-term capital
appreciation.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Macau government announced in December 2013
revised planning directives under the “Urban redevelopment
programme of the Northern District of Taipa Area” which
covers the area in which the investment property of the Group
is located. The Group will continue to explore and evaluate
various feasibility plans for its investment property to realize
its development potential at an opportune time.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group engaged less than 10 full-time employees in its
various offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Shanghai as at
31st December, 2016. The total emoluments of the Group for
the year under review amounted to HK$2,947,000 including
retirement benefits scheme contributions and directors’
emoluments. In addition, the Group shared administrative
resources with a core connected person in Hong Kong
on a cost basis and details are shown in Note 24(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
under review on page 112.

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a
highly-efficient staff management and incentive structure.
Emoluments paid to salaried staff and directors of the Group
are determined by reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance. Furthermore, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to which
directors and employees of the Group are eligible for options
that may be granted to subscribe for shares of the Company
as a long-term incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express

its gratitude to all the staff members of the Group for their
devotion and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Ge Peijian
Non-Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 17th March, 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards and procedures which emphasize management
of high quality, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and complied with the code provisions contained
therein during the year 2016 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report for 2016, except that:

(a) in contrast to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the
non-executive Directors (whether independent or not)
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term.
However, they are subject to retirement and re-election
at least once every three years at annual general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company;

(b) in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director of the Company appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company instead of being subject to election at the
first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment as stipulated in Code Provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code. Such arrangement not only complies with
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules but also streamlines
the mechanism of re-election of Directors so that both
new Directors appointed by the Board (either for filling
a casual vacancy or as an additional member) and
existing Directors retiring by rotation shall be subject to
re-election at the annual general meeting for the relevant
year. Furthermore, general meetings other than annual
general meetings will be reserved for considering and
approving notifiable/connected transactions or other
corporate actions under the Listing Rules only, which
should enhance efficiency in procedures for corporate
matters;

(c) the Company has not established a nomination
committee comprising a majority of independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Code Provision A.5.1
of the CG Code. This is because when identifying
individuals of appropriate calibre and qualification to be
Board members and when assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, it is necessary
to have a thorough understanding of the structure,
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business strategy and daily operation of the Company.
The participation of executive Directors during the
process is therefore indispensable. Accordingly, the
Board as a whole remains responsible for reviewing its
own structure, size and composition annually, and also
for considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors as well as assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and

(d) though the Company Secretary is not an employee
of the Company as stipulated in Code Provision
F.1.1 of the CG Code, the incumbent has day-to-day
involvement and knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
Company secretarial services are provided to the
Company by sharing of administrative services with its
core connected person on a cost basis.

THE BOARD

The Board is composed of nine members, including a
non-executive Chairman, Mr Ge Peijian; four executive
Directors, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Wang Fahua
and Madam Fan Suxia; one non-executive Director, Mr Sung
Tze-Chun; and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit Hing
Kwok. All the Directors have signed letters of appointment
with the Company which set out the key terms and conditions
of their appointment. Biographical details of the Directors
and relevant relationships among them together with their
respective roles in the Board and its committees are set out in
the Profile of the Directors and Officers on pages 30 to 34.

The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial
to the Board’s performance and development of the
Company. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. It believes that diversity should be viewed from its
widest perspective. Accordingly, selection of candidates to
the Board is based on a range of measurable objectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and
qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
having due regard to the Company’s own business model
and specific needs from time to time. During the year under
review, the Board has conducted an annual review of its
structure and composition at a regular meeting. With the
Board members coming from a variety of business and
professional background and two out of the nine Board
members being female, the Company considers that the
Board possesses a diverse mix of skills, experience and
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business and development.
Over a half of the Board members are non-executive and
it is considered that there is a balanced structure and
composition of the Board.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
represent one-third of the Board and one of them has
the appropriate professional accounting qualifications as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual written confirmation for the year 2016 from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and as and
when required. All Directors are consulted as to whether to
include any matters in the agenda. Sufficient notices are
given to all Directors at least 14 days before the regular
Board meetings and agenda together with accompanying
board papers are given to all Directors in a timely manner
before the day of meeting. Drafts and final versions of
minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record respectively. During the year 2016, four regular
meetings were held by the Board. Besides, the non-executive
Chairman of the Board had an annual meeting in 2016 for
exchange of opinions with all the non-executive Directors
(including all the independent ones) of the Company without
the executive Directors present.

The Board will always act in the best interests of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and
the shareholders. It is accountable to the shareholders for
the long-term performance of the Group, while taking into
consideration the interests of other stakeholders.

The Board, led by the Chairman, has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering formulation of
corporate strategy, approval of annual and interim results,
changes of members of the Board and its committees,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters.
The non-executive Directors have contributed valuable
independent views and proposals for the Board's deliberation
and decisions. The Board has established an executive
committee, an audit committee and a remuneration
committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clear written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s
responsibilities. The Committees have to report regularly to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the management, who
provides support to the Board in the setting of overall
strategic direction, long-term objectives and business
plans of the Group. Both the Board and the management
have clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under
various risk management, internal control and check-and-
balance mechanisms. The management is responsible for
implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and the Committees and assumes full accountability to the
Board for the operation of the Group.

All members of the Board have been provided with monthly
management updates to keep them up-to-date with material
developments of the Group’s operations, performance,
financial position and prospects. The Board has agreed on
a procedure to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense, to assist them to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the
discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

The Directors of the Company had disclosed to the Company
the offices held in other public companies or organisations
and the time involved and the Company had received
confirmations from each Director that he/she had devoted
sufficient time to perform his/her responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and had given sufficient attention to the
affairs of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests
of the Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an
orderly and effective operational system, which will enhance
operational efficiencies, thereby bolstering shareholders’
value. The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions. During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the
Board has discharged the following corporate governance
duties:

(a) review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) arrange seminars and briefings to Directors, review
and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, details of which are set
out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Induction and
Continuous Professional Development” in this report;

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIVA BB R A A

BEEEEZEEEAKE Z AEEE TTHE
LE VWEBIARBEZEBRE SR K&
BREEEBAESTERAESRBRMHHE &
BAR AR E IR ABEER BB B
EREEEBOBBFRATNRNNREE-B
BEAABEREEZRLE B MR KR
Matd IR AKEZEENEERAR

EEENEER2BNERHEBAZEHNE
£ MEE TR AEREAEENZE KRB
MBRAEA R 2 RFTEAER -EEREW
TARESAHREEBA TS RBYEXER
Mg ABRERETERE BEHERMA
RRBAT e

AAFRERREEESHETEREMELD
BEERFEENEERR RRZRELES
F T RE -

ARAREZCRAARRAFEEEREMAR AR
AR A P EE RV BRAL N P S R I ] - KR )
NERFEEZERAT RAKBETAAR]
EZNBENAEDBIANRR 2 EIH 2R -

EERRAE

ARABHEBREFSKIEREDERE
BeBERMGEZEEER RFEEERY
—EAERERBEYNEERARIBAEE  FH
AR EERE AmMEMRREE-EFH
BEMRERMBRE-RBEE_T—X"F+_-A
—t—HLEFER EZRCEITATEEE

> o == .
R E -

(a) BAARFMEEREABRLER:

(b) AEFLHFIIRIENE®R tws MEE
EEMRIILFEERRR FHERA
BENRER [EEZABESIRFESR
KRR



T

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, including reviewing the provisions of the
codes on risk management and internal control of the
Group;

(d) review and monitor code of practice for securities
transactions by the Directors and relevant employees
(the “Code of Practice for Securities Transactions”) and
guidelines on arrangements for raising concerns about
improprieties; and

(e) review the Company’'s compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code and relevant disclosure in
interim and annual reports.

Executive Committee

The Company has not appointed a chief executive but
the Board has established an executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) with written terms of reference since
August 2005 and the Chairman of the Board does not act
as a member. There is a segregation of duties between the
Chairman of the Board for leadership and management of the
Board and the Executive Committee may convene meetings
as it considers necessary for dealing with the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business.

The Executive Committee is composed of four executive
Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr
Albert Tong, Mr Wang Fahua and Madam Fan Suxia. Madam
Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive Committee.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established by the Board in March 2012 with specific
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
website. Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr
Sit Hing Kwok, being all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, and Mr Sung Tze-Chun, a non-
executive Director of the Company, are members of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr Sit Hing Kwok is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, to
determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors of the Company. The remuneration
of any member of the Remuneration Committee shall be
determined by the Board.
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A Remuneration Committee’s meeting was held during 2016
for an annual review of the remuneration policy and packages
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company.
Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors and senior
management of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 are set out in Note 12(a) to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 99 and 100.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in April 1999 by the Board with specific written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee is composed of all the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company,
namely Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit
Hing Kwok. Mr Zhang Hong Bin who possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required by the
Listing Rules is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required
to review the Company’s financial information, to monitor
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to review
the Company’s financial controls, the risk management and
internal control systems and to oversee the relationship with
the Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

During the year 2016, in accordance with its terms of
reference and under the authorization of the Board, the Audit
Committee held three meetings for reviewing the interim and
annual financial statements as well as the financial reporting
matters of the Group, evaluating the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and the significant
risks faced by the Group, reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness and resource adequacy of internal audit
function of the Company, considering the engagement and
scope of services of the Auditor and reviewing arrangements
for raising concerns about improprieties.

The Audit Committee concluded that in 2016 the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group was
effective and the internal audit function of the Company
was implemented effectively. The Audit Committee was
satisfied with related resources of the internal audit function
and the resources, staff qualifications and experience, and
training programmes and related budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as the
implementation, application and effectiveness of the policy on
arrangements for raising concerns about improprieties.
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In March 2017, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for 2016
and to consider the re-appointment of the Auditor. The Audit
Committee recommended the Board to approve the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for 2016 and propose the
re-appointment of the Auditor at annual general meeting of
the Company for 2017.

Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting,
regular meetings of the Board and meetings of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee held during
the year ended 31st December, 2016 is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

BHE/BTHEREA
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEnS BRRAE EER FMzEsE ENRZEES
Non-Executive Chairman FHTERE
Mr Ge Peijian B 1/1 4/4 NATEE  NATEA
(Chairman of the Board) (EZRLE)
Executive Directors BITESR
Madam Hsu Feng % Wzt 1/1 444 NATEA  NATEA
Mr Albert Tong i FREE 11 4/4 NATER  NATER
Mr Wang Fahua THRELE 11 4/4 NATER  NATER
Madam Fan Suxia BRELT 11 4/4 NATEER  NATEA
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RUELE 11 4/4 1M NATER
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr Liang Jung-chi PEBSE 11 4/4 111 313
Mr Zhang Hong Bin ERREE 1/1 4/4 111 3/3
(Chairman of Audiit Committee) (BRZEE81fE)
Mr Sit Hing Kwok EEELAE 11 4/4 11 313
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) (BFHWZEe1fE)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors EEZCEENEER

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors could be elected by the Company
or appointed by the Board. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and the retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code and the
Board is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience
of its members), and identifying, selecting and considering
any appointment or re-appointment of its own members. The
Board is also responsible for assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors.

No new Board member was appointed during the year under
review. Mr Wang Fahua, Mr Sung Tze-Chun and Mr Zhang
Hong Bin retired by rotation and were re-elected at the
Company’s annual general meeting for 2016.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition was
made by the Board during the year under review and the
Board resolved to keep the structure and composition of the
Board unchanged.

In addition, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Sit Hing Kwok and Madam
Fan Suxia will retire by rotation at the Company’s annual
general meeting for 2017 and will be subject to re-election at
that general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of
the Company is given a comprehensive orientation package,
including the latest information of the Group, induction
into their responsibilities and duties, terms of reference
of the relevant Committees and other related regulatory
requirements.

Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep
them abreast of latest developments in the legislative or
regulatory environment, the Directors are regularly provided
with updates and briefings on the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Circulars or
guidance notes issued by various regulatory authorities or
organizations, where appropriate, are given to the Directors
for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages
the Directors to enroll in a wide range of professional
development seminars and conferences. During the year
ended 31st December, 2016, the Company organized four
in-house seminars on the areas of public communication
skills and techniques, global economic conditions, financing
strategies and corporate governance so as to help the
Directors refresh their knowledge and skills.
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A summary of the continuous professional development in
which the Directors participated during the year ended 31st
December, 2016 is as follows:
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REBEE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HILFE &
EM2ENFEEXERBEN T

Continuous
Professional Development
BEEERRE

Type Subject
Name of Directors EEHE BE &
Non-Executive Chairman FHTERE
Mr Ge Peijian BiEfEtaE 1,2 A B
Executive Directors HITES
Madam Hsu Feng R ML 1,2 A, B
Mr Albert Tong & FR%E 1,2 A B
Mr Wang Fahua FEERAE 1,2 A B
Madam Fan Suxia BREXT 1,2 A B
Non-Executive Director HITES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RINE A4 1,2 A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors B I FHTES
Mr Liang Jung-chi REETHE 1,2 A B
Mr Zhang Hong Bin BERMEEE 1,2 A B
Mr Sit Hing Kwok B B S A 1,2 A B
Types: FEXE -
1:  Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference or 1 BEABEH®RE 5 EE R ERHE

forums

2. Reading relevant information and updates 2: HEBHEENMKEFREHR
Subjects: FE:

A Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B: Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for
Securities Transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company, each of the Directors has confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Code of Practice for Securities Transactions throughout the
year.

A BEAREXRBABOHETE

B: AR RE BBHEL-—REEZEFEH
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring
that proper risk management and internal control systems
are maintained within the Group and for overseeing the
effectiveness of these systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets against
misappropriation and to manage the operational risks. The
Company has adopted its own codes on internal control for
itself and its subsidiaries in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions since 2005 and the codes were
revised and renamed as codes on risk management and
internal control in 2015. The codes on risk management and
internal control are reviewed regularly and modified pursuant
to operational requirements of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are
intended to manage, not eliminate, significant risks of
failure to achieve the Group's business objectives, so they
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The operating units
of the Group, as the risk owners, go through the following
processes on an ongoing basis and report results to the
management:

(i) identify their own significant risks in the Group's
operation environment and evaluate the impacts of
those risks on the Group’s business and financial
position;

(i) develop necessary measures to manage those risks;
and

(i) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the codes on risk management
and internal control to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information and
the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

An external service provider has been engaged for providing

internal audit services to the Group during the year under
review.
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The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group at least once a year and the
Audit Committee held a meeting in 2016 for that purpose.
The Board, through the review of the Audit Committee,
considers that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate and the Group
has complied with the provisions on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code and the Group's
codes on risk management and internal control during the
year ended 31st December, 2016.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the
Audit Committee, the internal audit function was effective
in 2016 and that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and related budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions are adequate.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they
are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2016, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; have
made judgments and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to
form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and their opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2016 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 52 to 57.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided
to the Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 amounted to approximately HK$1,092,000
and HK$67,000 respectively. The non-audit services provided
during the year were taxation services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is an employee of
a core connected person of the Company and has day-to-
day involvement and knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
Company secretarial services are provided to the Company
by sharing of administrative services with its core connected
person on a cost basis. The Company Secretary supports the
Board by ensuring board procedures are followed and board
proceedings are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is
also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised
of all applicable law, rules, regulations and corporate
governance developments. During the year under review, the
Company Secretary has taken relevant professional training
as required under the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the
Company's shareholders through various channels including
the Company’s annual general meetings. In 2016, all the
Board members including, inter-alia, the Chairman of
the Board and chairmen of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, attended the annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions from the
shareholders. Representatives of the Auditor also attended
that meeting to answer questions about the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2015.

In order to further enhance communication with the
shareholders of the Company and enable the Company’s
shareholders to have timely and updated information of
the Group, the Company has set up its own website at
http://www.rivera.com.hk where the corporate information,
interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
business development and other information of the Company
are posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Calling a General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company holding at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings of the Company may request the Board
to call a general meeting. The request (a) must contain the
name(s) of the requisitionist(s), their contact details and
number of shares of the Company held by them, (b) must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
general meeting, (c) must be signed by the requisitionist(s),
(d) must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (the “Registered
Office”) for the attention of the Company Secretary of the
Company, and (e) if a special resolution is to be proposed at
the general meeting, must include the text of the resolution
and specify the intention to propose the resolution as a
special resolution.

The Directors must proceed to call a general meeting within
21 days after the date of receipt of a valid request (which has
been duly verified by the share registrar of the Company).
If the Board does not duly call a general meeting that must
be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) or any of them representing
more than one-half of their total voting rights may themselves
call a general meeting which shall be held within 3 months
from the date of deposit of the request.

Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

(a) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company
having a relevant right to vote, or at least 50
shareholders of the Company having the relevant voting
rights may:

(i) propose a resolution at an annual general meeting
at least 6 weeks before such meeting or no later
than the time at which the notice of the meeting is
given; or

(i) request the Company to circulate, to the
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of
not exceeding 1,000 words for either a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution (if they are
entitled to vote on that resolution) or other business
to be dealt with at that meeting at least 7 days
before the meeting.
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The duly signed request shall be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary of the Company within the above prescribed
timeline.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the
Company’s website at http://www.rivera.com.hk.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the share registrar of the Company, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

To the extent such information is publicly available,
shareholders may at any time put forward enquiries to the
Board through the Company Secretary in writing by mail to
the Registered Office or by e-mail to ir@rivera.com.hk.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2016
and up to the date of publication of the annual report of the
Company for 2016.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Mr Ge Peijian, aged 59, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) since July 2014. He has been elected as Chairman
of the Board since March 2015. He has subsequently been
re-designated from executive Director to non-executive
Director of the Company and has ceased to act as a member
of the Executive Committee of the Board since May 2015. He
has also been delegated to act as a director of subsidiaries
of the Company in Shanghai from September 2014.

Mr Ge holds a Master of Business Administration degree and
qualified as a Senior Economist in the Mainland. During the
period from July 1993 to September 1996, he took up the
post of deputy director of the office of Finance and Taxation
Bureau of Pudong New Area in Shanghai and he acted as
the director of the property right administration of State-
owned Assets Administration Office of Pudong New Area in
Shanghai during the period from September 1996 to May
2001. During the period from August 2001 to April 2014, he
took up the post of the president of Shanghai Pudong Road
& Bridge Construction Co., Ltd. ("“Pudong Road Bridge”), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and during
the period from August 2003 to April 2014, he also acted as
the secretary of the party committee of Pudong Road Bridge.
In addition, during the period from April 2009 to April 2014,
Mr Ge acted as the vice secretary of the party committee,
the secretary of the commission for discipline inspection and
the vice president of Shanghai Pudong Development (Group)
Co., Ltd. (B8 HRERE (£8)BR A7) . He also acted
as a member of the Commission for Discipline Inspection
of Pudong New Area in Shanghai during the period from
December 2011 to April 2014. Mr Ge acted as the vice
secretary of the party committee of Shanghai Zhangjiang
(Group) Co., Ltd., one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, during the period from April 2014 to October 2015.
He also acted as a director of Cachet Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Small and Medium Enterprise
Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, during the period from
September 2014 to April 2016.

Mr Ge is the vice president and the general manager of
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, and the president of Best Central
Developments Limited ("Best Central”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, while Mr Wang Fahua, an
executive Director of the Company, is the general manager of
Investment Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and a director
of Best Central. Both of Mr Ge and Mr Wang are also minority
shareholders of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Both Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech and Best Central are substantial shareholders of the
Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 66, has been appointed a Director
of the Company since January 1990 and the chairman of
the Executive Committee of the Board since August 2005.
She is now an executive Director of the Company and has
been appointed a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company since December 2003. She has over 10 years’
experience in film production, and in property development
and investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has
been engaged in the property development, hospitality and
leisure business in the Mainland for over 20 years. She is
also the Honorary Consul of the Principality of Monaco in
Shanghai.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and all of them act as executive directors
of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”), a listed company in
Hong Kong and a shareholder of the Company having a
notifiable interest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”). Madam Hsu is also the chairman,
managing director and substantial shareholder of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together with her
persons acting in concert, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, have an interest in 779,274,488 issued shares of
the Company.

Mr Albert Tong, aged 34, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a director of a number of its
subsidiaries since March 2001. He has also been appointed
a member of the Executive Committee of the Board since
August 2005. He has actively participated in business
development, corporate management, property trading and
securities investment for years.

He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, an executive Director and
a substantial shareholder of the Company, and a younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and all of them act as executive directors
of TGL. He is also the vice-chairman and substantial
shareholder of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Albert Tong is taken to
have, together with his persons acting in concert, Madam
Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, an interest in
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company.
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Mr Wang Fahua, aged 54, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board since May 2015.

He holds a Master of Polymer Chemistry degree. During
the period from October 1994 to September 2004, he took
up the post of assistant to general manager of /&M aR/T
S EIMTEZEEE X AR (Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Real Estate Park Import and Export Company). He joined
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in October 2004 and took up principal
posts in Strategic Planning Department and Investment &
Security Management Department of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
during the years. He has served in Investment Department of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech since March 2015 and was promoted to
general manager of the department in February 2016.

In addition to being a staff of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, Mr Wang is
a minority shareholder of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and a director
of Best Central, while Mr Ge Peijian, the non-executive
Chairman of the Board, is the vice president, general
manager and minority shareholder of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech,
and also the president of Best Central.

Madam Fan Suxia, aged 45, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Board since November 2014,

She holds a bachelor's degree in financial accounting, a
Master of Management degree in accounting and a Master
of Business Administration degree. She also qualified as a
Chief Accountant and Senior Accountant in the Mainland. She
joined Pudong Road Bridge in May 2005 and was principally
responsible for financial duties. She was promoted to
manager of Financial Department of Pudong Road Bridge in
March 2012 and resigned from her post in September 2014.
She has years of experience in financial management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Sung Tze-Chun, aged 66, has been appointed a non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2006 and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board since
March 2012. He was an executive Director of the Company
until December 2003.
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He holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree and
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr Sung has about 20 years’ experience in retail, property
development and marketing in Taiwan and has about 25
years' experience in financial analysis and management.
He has taken part in business development, corporate
management and property development in the Mainland
and Hong Kong and has provided consultancy services
on business and investment management in Taiwan. He
also acted as the general consultant of the group operation
committee of Yungtay Engineering Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange) until February 2013
and a director of its subsidiary, x X E# (FE) BRR AT
(formerly known as /K KEHZEAR AR, until July
2013. Mr Sung is a consultant of TGL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Liang Jung-chi, aged 69, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
February 1994, a member of the Audit Committee of the
Board since April 1999 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board since March 2012. He is a physician
in Taiwan.

The annual director’'s fee of Mr Liang has been increased
from HK$87,600 to HK$93,600 with effect from 1st January,
2017, which was approved by the Board, under the
authorization of the shareholders at the 2016 annual general
meeting of the Company and on recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, with reference to his
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Zhang Hong Bin, aged 43, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board since April
2005, and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Board since March 2012.

Mr Zhang holds a bachelor's degree in economics. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is also a qualified lawyer in the
Mainland. He is a financial controller of a company engaged
in property leasing and management in the Mainland and has
years of experience in financial management.
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The annual director’s fee of Mr Zhang has been increased
from HK$112,800 to HK$117,600 with effect from 1st
January, 2017, which was approved by the Board, under the
authorization of the shareholders at the 2016 annual general
meeting of the Company and on recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, with reference to his
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Sit Hing Kwok, aged 67, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Board since July
2007. He has also been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board since March 2012.

Mr Sit has been engaged in supervisory positions in
journalism for over 20 years. From 1992 up to September
2009, he was a director of United Daily News Limited in Hong
Kong. He was also a director of the Hong Kong news bureau
of the United Daily News Group until September 2009. He
is now a freelance writer and has been a lecturer of the
Department of Journalism & Communication of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University since November 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Sit has been increased from
HK$106,800 to HK$111,600 with effect from 1st January,
2017, which was approved by the Board, under the
authorization of the shareholders at the 2016 annual general
meeting of the Company and on recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board, with reference to his
responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 50, has been appointed the
Company Secretary of the Company since March 1998. She
attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s
degree in business studies, and is an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 58, has been appointed the
Financial Controller of the Company since September 1999.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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EESRBES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present its Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2016 and the independent Auditor's report
thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year were
property development and investment as well as securities
trading and investment.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an
investment holding company while the principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are listed
under Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 103 to 105.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s
business for the year ended 31st December, 2016, an
indication of the future development of the Group’s business
as well as an analysis of the Group’'s principal risk and
uncertainties are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 3 to 15. This discussion forms part of this
Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and
regulations, and an account of the Group’s relationships with
its employees, customers and suppliers are set out below in
this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 and the Group’s financial position as at the
end thereof are set out on pages 58 to 118. An analysis by
operating segments and geographical location is set out in
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 92
to 96.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any

important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the year under review.
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DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2015: Nil).

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.05 per share for the year ended 31st December,
2016 (2015: HK$0.02 per share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Tuesday, 6th June, 2017 at 4:30 p.m. subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Thursday, 1st June, 2017 (the “2017 AGM"). For
determining the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the 2017 AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 26th May, 2017 to Thursday, 1st
June, 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 25th May, 2017 for registration.

The record date and time for entitlement to the proposed final
dividend for 2016 is Tuesday, 6th June, 2017 at 4:30 p.m.. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6th
June, 2017 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Of the gross proceeds from operations and purchases of
the Group for the year under review, less than 30% was
attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers respectively.

DONATIONS

No donations for charitable and other causes were made by
the Group during the year ended 31st December, 2016.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Group
neither added nor disposed of nor wrote off any assets (2015:
added assets of HK$755,000 while disposed of and wrote off
assets with an aggregate net book value of HK$27,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are
shown in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 102 and 103.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, for
sale or investment purposes, is set out on page 119.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

There were no bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31st December, 2016.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the
year.

None of interest expenses of the Group were capitalized
during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2016, 2,608,546,511 ordinary shares
with no par value of the Company were in issue and were fully
paid, and the total amount of share capital of the Company
was approximately HK$442,244,000. The Company did not
issue any new shares or buy back any issued shares during
the year under review.

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in Note

23 to the consolidated financial statements on page 111,

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, of the Company'’s listed securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company
adopted in 2012 as disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year under review or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st
December, 2016 amounted to HK$188,114,000 (2015:
HK$71,074,000).

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are shown in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 62 and 118 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group
for the preceding five financial years is set out on page 123.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report
and those who were in office during the year under review
and up to the date of this Report are:

Non-Executive Chairman
Mr Ge Peijian

Executive Directors
Madam Hsu Feng
Mr Albert Tong

Mr Wang Fahua
Madam Fan Suxia

Non-Executive Director
Mr Sung Tze-Chun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Liang Jung-chi

Mr Zhang Hong Bin

Mr Sit Hing Kwok
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A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages
30 to 34.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 12(a) to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 99 and 100.

The emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company
were determined by the remuneration committee of the Board
(the “Committee”) and the fees of the non-executive Directors
of the Company (whether independent or not) were fixed by
the Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the
Company and on the recommendation of the Committee.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.
Articles 77 to 79 provide that at every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
nearest number to but not more than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who
have been longest in office since their last election and shall
be eligible for re-election. In this connection, Mr Albert Tong,
Mr Sit Hing Kwok and Madam Fan Suxia will retire by rotation
at the 2017 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company
is subject to separate resolutions to be approved by
shareholders at the 2017 AGM and details of those Directors
will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to be
despatched to the shareholders together with the notice of
the annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the 2017 AGM have an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The persons who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31st
December, 2016 and up to the date of this Report included
Mr Chen Ganijin, Mr Ge Peijian, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert
Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Mr Chen Xiaoshi, Ms Lu Ying,
Mr Gu Xueli, Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, Ms Lee Yuen Han and Mr
Lau Che Kong, Spencer.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622), every Director of the Company shall be
indemnified by insurance out of the funds of the Company
against any liabilities which he/she may incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that such article shall only have effect in
so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Companies
Ordinance. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group during the year under
review.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571) (the “SFQ”)), which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein (including interests
and short positions which they were taken to have under
Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(1) The Company:
Ordinary Shares

EECESRBERKR

RZE—ARNF+ZA=+—H ARAZE
ERARFHEEMEBER (1R (FBH I H
BIEG) (B5T1E)EXVE 2 EERE) 2R
i EREELEEROFHEBREER (FHF Kk
HAE (R 01) 35214 2 3R 7€ ad & A & iR I A st
WELZMA (BERE (EHFRBAEERN) 2
B4R RERNRRNRE) REABRE
BBEXSMABRAT (TBRM]) (F #‘fﬁ
maR Al (T (Lﬁ%ﬁﬁw D ZEEMERR
RGPz Em ROAB AT

(1) KA
HER

Number of shares of the Company

AR ZBRBEE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors EEnS BAESR RERER AR ER HitiE s
Mr Ge Peijian BiEREE Nil £ Nil £ Nil £ (4) Nil £&
Madam Hsu Feng (B) & #WiLB) 317,178,162 (C) Nil & 255,676,326 (D), (E) 206,420,000 (F)
Mr Albert Tong (B) & FR%E (B) Nil £ Nil £ Nil & 779,274,488 (F)
Mr Wang Fahua TERELEE Nil Nil £ Nil £ (4) Nil £
(2) The Company’s associated corporation: (2) AATRZHEEER :
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port FEERIMEFEFRELT
Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”) ([HEFELT]
Registered capital =& A
Amount of registered capital of SZMP
MEFEBARZEMELRE

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors EEnE BARER RERER NEER HpiEs
Mr Ge Peijian BEfEs Nil & Nil £ Nil # (G) Nil £
Madam Hsu Feng (B) % %1 (B) Nil 4 Nil & RMB50,000,000 (D), (H) Nil &

AR #50,000,0007T

Mr Albert Tong (B) B FR%E (B) Nil 4 Nil £ Nil £& (H) Nil 4
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Notes:

(A)

As at 31st December, 2016, a total of 779,955,407 issued
shares (being 29.9% of the total number of issued shares)
of the Company were beneficially held by Best Central
Developments Limited (“Best Central”). Best Central was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”).

Mr Ge Peijian and Mr Wang Fahua were the president
and a director of Best Central respectively. In addition, Mr
Ge was the vice president and the general manager of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng.

As at 31st December, 2016, they were considered to
be persons acting in concert and held an aggregate of
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company, representing
29.87% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company, pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial
owner an interest in 317,178,162 issued shares of the
Company.

As at 31st December, 2016, Madam Hsu Feng was entitled
to control the exercise of more than one-third of voting
power at general meetings of Tomson Group Limited
(“TGL").

A total of 255,676,326 issued shares of the Company were
beneficially held by Cosmos Success Development Limited
("Cosmos Success”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL,
hence, Madam Hsu Feng was deemed to have an interest
in these shares through a corporation controlled by her.

Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements with her
sons, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Albert Tong, to
sell to each of them 103,210,000 issued shares of the
Company, in an aggregate of 206,420,000 issued shares,
which have been pledged by Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and
Mr Albert Tong in favour of Madam Hsu Feng as a security
for their performance of the duties under the aforesaid
agreements. Pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng was
taken to have a security interest in these 206,420,000
issued shares of the Company.
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As at 31st December, 2016, on account of the aforesaid
agreements and pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng
held and was deemed to hold an interest in a total of
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company and Mr Albert
Tong was therefore taken to have an interest in these
779,274,488 issued shares of the Company by virtue of
being a person acting in concert with Madam Hsu Feng.

(G) As at 31st December, 2016, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech held
an interest of RMB183.55 million (being 49.5%) in the
registered capital of SZMP. Mr Ge Peijian was the vice
president and the general manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

(H) TGL held an interest of RMB50 million (being 13.5%) in
the registered capital of SZMP through its wholly-owned
subsidiary. Madam Hsu Feng was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the registered capital of SZMP through a
corporation controlled by her.

Mr Albert Tong was a director and a substantial
shareholder of TGL.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company and their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, debentures and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31st December, 2016, which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein (including interests or short positions which they
were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme, there
were no options granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31st December, 2016, nor was there
any option outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the
year.

The major terms of the 2012 Scheme are as follows:
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Purpose

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Participants
The participants of the 2012 Scheme include, inter alia:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity, including any executive director of any
of these entities; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent non-

executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(i) any customer of or supplier of goods or services to any

member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

any adviser or consultant of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
must not exceed 260,854,651 shares, being 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
this Report, unless shareholders’ approval of the Company
has been obtained.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted to each participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant of option shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”).
If any further grant of options to a participant would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant to be in excess of the Individual Limit, such further
grant must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

Exercise period of options

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not be more than 10
years commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Minimum holding period of an option
before exercise

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of
the relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance of an option

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of a consideration for the
grant thereof.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect
of any option that may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the
higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; and
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(i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option.

Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective till 31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such valid
period, no further options will be offered or granted but in
all other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year
nor at the end of the year ended 31st December, 2016,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The following Directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in business which may compete or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, other than that business where the Directors have
been appointed/were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the
Listing Rules:

(i)  Mr Ge Peijian is the vice president and the general
manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech,
its subsidiaries and associates have participated in
property development and investment in the Mainland,
including, inter alia, in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of
Pudong New Area (“Zhangjiang Park”) in Shanghai; and
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(i) Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert Tong are chairman and
vice-chairman of board of directors of TGL respectively.
They are also substantial shareholders of TGL. TGL
has through its subsidiaries taken part in property
development and investment in Shanghai, mainly in
Pudong New Area, as well as in Tianjin and Macau.

Property development and investment is one of the principal
activities of the Group. The Group participates in property
development and management in the Zhangjiang Park
and Fengxian District of Shanghai through its subsidiaries
and an associated company. Accordingly, the business
of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and TGL (collectively the “Potential
Competitors”) in the property sector in Shanghai (the
‘Excluded Business”) may potentially compete with the
Group’s business. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a listed company
in Shanghai and TGL is a listed company in Hong Kong.
The Group’s business and the Excluded Business are
managed by independent management and administration
respectively. Besides, the Board is independent of the boards
of directors of the Potential Competitors and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company would assist in
monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at
an arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with him (within the meaning
of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into
during the year ended 31st December, 2016 or subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the arrangement for sharing of administrative
expenses with TGL as disclosed in Note 24(b) to the
consolidated financial statements on page 112, no contracts
for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2016.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485) (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all
its employees in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined
contribution scheme effective from November 2002 and
is funded by contributions from employer and employees
pursuant to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. Should the
employer make any voluntary contributions for the employees
under the scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature
can be applied to reduce the amount of future voluntary
contributions payable by the employer.

In addition, the employees of the Group in the Mainland are
members of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
government. The employer and the employees are obliged
to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed
by the Group to the above schemes and charged to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to
HK$36,000 (2015: HK$44,000) and no contributions were
forfeited.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets
to the Group’s business. The Group provides competitive
remuneration package and makes regular review to attract
and motivate the employees.

The Group also understands that relationship is the
fundamentals of business. Therefore, the Group maintains
close relationship with its suppliers and customers. To
maintain the Group’s competitiveness, the Group aims at
delivering constantly quality products and services to its
customers. During the year ended 31st December, 2016,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2016, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly
or indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of issued shares
and underlying shares of the Company and those interests
were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

BRRzERRAR

RIZE—ARF+-_A=1+—8 FTHKE (K
NABEERIN EESEEWHEEARRZE
AT MBI D 8RB 1ZES% ek A ERyRE RS -
MizEEmBER (BFHRBEEM) 5336
B2 REERHENBETHFT 2 EZRMA:

(1) Substantial shareholders: 1 FERRK:
Number of shares held
(proportion to the
number of issued shares)
FERDEE
Name of shareholders BREERE (HERTROBEZEDLL)
Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. BRI (EE)BRAR 779,955,407  (29.90%)
(“Zhangjiang Group”) (a) ([RIEE]) (@)
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park PERIaMEERFERNERLDA] 779,955,407  (29.90%)
Development Co., Ltd. (&Il B]) (a)
(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) (a)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (b) B FRTE (b) 779,274,488  (29.87%)
(2) Other persons: (2) Hb AL
Number of shares held
(proportion to the
number of issued shares)
FERDEE
Name of shareholder BREERE (HEBTROBBZEDL)
Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”) (c) HBESEERAR ([FEEE]) () 255,676,326 (9.80%)

Notes:

(a) The references to 779,955,407 issued shares were related
to the same block of shares of the Company which was
beneficially held by Best Central. Best Central was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai (Z.J.) Hi-Tech Park
Limited (“Shanghai (Z.J.)") which was in turn wholly owned
by Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in which Zhangjiang Group held
more than 50% interest. Therefore, Best Central, Shanghai
(Z.J.), Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and Zhangjiang Group were
interested or were taken to be interested in these shares
pursuant to the SFO.
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(b) By virtue of being a person acting in concert with Madam
Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was taken to have
an interest in 779,274,488 issued shares of the Company
which referred to the same block of shares of the Company
in which Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert Tong were
interested or taken to be interested, as disclosed in the
above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” in this Report.

(c) The 255,676,326 issued shares of the Company were
beneficially held by Cosmos Success. Cosmos Success
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hoffman Enterprises
Corp. (“Hoffman”) which was in turn wholly owned by
Tomson Corporation in which TGL held the entire interest.
Therefore, Cosmos Success, Hoffman, Tomson Corporation
and TGL were interested or were taken to be interested in
these shares pursuant to the SFO.

The aforesaid shares constituted a part of the total interests
of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles in the shares of the Company as disclosed in the
above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” in this Report and in this paragraph
respectively.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company
are not aware of any person (other than the Directors of the
Company) who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short
positions in the number of issued shares and the underlying
shares of the Company and those interests or short positions
were required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this Report, the Company maintains a sufficient public
float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Group
has mainly engaged in the sale and leasing of car parking
spaces in Shanghai and securities trading in Hong Kong, so
the principal activities of the Group did not give arise to any
material adverse influences to the environment.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EERWES

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. The conscientious use of resources and
adoption of green office practices in the Group’s offices, such
as double-sided printing and copying, promoting re-cycling
principle and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lightings and electrical appliances, underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules, and other applicable local laws and
regulations in various jurisdictions in which it operates. During
the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on it.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2016 have been audited by the
Auditor of the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
and there was no change in the Auditor of the Company in
the previous three financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17th March, 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 58 to 118, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31st December, 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Interest in an associate

We identified the interest in an associate as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the Group's interest in the associate
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company held 37% interest in the associate,
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd., and
which is the Group's strategic investment in Shanghai.
The Group’s share of results from the associate for the
year ended 31st December, 2016 is HK$187,883,000
which is approximately 61% of the Group’s profit for the
year and the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets
is HK$921,610,000 as at 31st December, 2016 which is
approximately 34% of the Group’s total assets.

As further disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the principal activities of the associate are
property development and management. The Group's
share of results of an associate is highly dependent on the
associate's revenue recognised for the year ended 31st
December, 2016. We also focused on the properties held for
sale and land appreciation tax payable which represented
approximately 29% of the total assets of the associate and
approximately 21% of the total liabilities of the associate,
respectively as at 31st December, 2016.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Our procedures in relation to the interest in an associate
included:

e |nvolving a component audit team to perform audit of the
financial information of the associate;

e Discussing with the management of the Group and
working with the component audit team to understand the
associate’s business performance and significant events
for the year to identify and assess risks that are significant
to the audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements;

e Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of
the component audit team’s work by reviewing their
underlying audit documentation;

e Discussing with the component audit team to further
understand results of their work in particular those on the
associate’s revenue, properties held for sale and land
appreciation tax payable; and

e Evaluating the accuracy of financial data of the associate
used by the management of the Group by comparing
them with financial information audited by the component
audit team.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17th March, 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

o A4 3L
melEER
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE —T— A F+_A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
liikz3 FET FHIT
Gross proceeds from operations LW B R 788 633,532 401,178
Revenue WA 788 3,681 1,955
Cost of sales & A AR (1,046) (581)
Gross profit E A 2,635 1,374
Dividends from available-for-sale AHEEREY
investments A% B A 38,220 19,118
Other income RN 9 12,802 20,909
Selling expenses HEEH (64) (104)
Administrative expenses THE A (12,102) (12,449)
Exchange loss ME H &5 18 (10,571) (14,305)
Net gain in held-for-trading investments &% & U5 F 58 101,220 13,278
132,140 27,821
Share of results of an associate N 187,883 141,306
Profit before taxation R A5 A1 a2 A 320,023 169,127
Taxation BB 10 (14,173) 5,463
Profit for the year & Z 5 F 11 305,850 174,590
Profit for the year attributable to: FERMPEIT
Owners of the Company RARERFFEA 305,586 174,126
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR AR R M 2 264 464
305,850 174,590
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRAER (BI)
— Basic —EK 14 11.71 6.68
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEnkEMEENAR

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE —T— X F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-KEF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Profit for the year F s A 305,850 174,590
Other comprehensive income (expense): HEm2mkA (FAX) :
ltems that may be subsequently AEF A EE B &
reclassified to profit or loss HyH
Gain (loss) on change in fair value of AR ERE RN EZEEE
available-for-sale investments EEz W (EiE) 147,022 (21,512)
Exchange differences arising BMETIEEREEZ
from translation of: E X ZERE
— other foreign operations — H b /G INETE (10,930) (12,137)
— an associate ——XEE QA (55,701) (40,257)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREEMEEAKA (FAX)
for the year 80,391 (73,906)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHBRAE 386,241 100,684
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2EkE (AX) 858
attributable to: DEEIAT :
Owners of the Company RAFIERFEA A 386,684 101,005
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR SR AE =5 (443) (321)
386,241 100,684
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2016 A=

e AR R R

Z—RFt+-H=1t—H

2016 2015
—REF —E—0F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FET AT
Non-current Assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KRR 15 6,337 7,385
Investment property &ﬁ%% 17 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate NN s 18 921,610 859,425
Deferred tax assets EERRIBE = 25 15,324 16,245
Available-for-sale investments Al ERE 19 556,689 334,880
1,528,523 1,246,498
Current Assets REEE
Properties held for sale FEMHE 18,089 20,325
Held-for-trading investments HFEKE 20 27,369 433,437
Other receivables and prepayments H fh pE IR BE X R FB (N sk 18 24,358 21,842
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEE 21 1,152,132 697,398
1,221,948 1,173,002
Current Liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables [‘Hfé%ﬁﬁfﬂ H {th & {5
and accruals AR X R FBIR IR 22 19,606 20,611
Tax payable mﬂfaliai 101,063 109,051
120,669 129,662
Net Current Assets RBEERE 1,101,279 1,043,340
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HWEERRBERE 2,629,802 2,289,838
Capital and Reserves EAXL#E
Share capital FEEN 23 442,244 442,244
Reserves L] 2,124,370 1,789,857
Equity attributable to owners of RATERFE AEIEER
the Company 2,566,614 2,232,101
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR PR 2R A 25 10,238 10,681
Total Equity R 2,576,852 2,242,782
Non-current Liability FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEA G 25 52,950 47,056
2,629,802 2,289,838

The consolidated financial statements were approved and SEEMBBREAN-_E—t+E=FA++-HEES
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17th March, PR ETTRETZ THTINESRAKRES:
2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ge Peijian Albert Tong
B ETE
Chairman Director
*E EE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE —T— X F+_A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E-KF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K SEE
Profit before taxation B A A% A 320,023 169,127
Adjustments for: KA T A2 -
Interest income FEWA (12,696) (18,834)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments At H &% & 2 IR B U A (38,220) (19,118)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - = MR G E 1,047 1,047
Loss on change in fair value of FEREQNFEE
held-for-trading investments EXEE 226 47,499
Gain on disposal/written off property, HE/MEME - BE R
plant and equipment B W a - (4)
Share of results of an associate FE(REE & N R ZEE (187,883) (141,306)
Operating cash flows before movements HEESEEAIZ
in working capital KERSME 82,497 38,411
Decrease in properties held for sale FEMER D 2,236 1,207
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading FERERD (Em)
investments 405,842 (295,060)
Increase in other receivables and H b R UL BR 3k R BT 3R IR
prepayments 0 (1,979) (9,861)
(Decrease) increase in trade and FERTE Z RN B EMERRK
other payables and accruals RiaezIE Opd) 8 m (5,783) 402
Cash from (used in) operations KB (AR EEFEH RS 482,813 (264,901)
Income taxes paid B ATER (5,867) (3,131)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING KEH (AR)REEE 2
ACTIVITIES HEFEHE 476,946 (268,032)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Dividends received from an associate R NCI i SR PN
(net of withholding tax) (BB MEAE) 66,497 338,507
Increase in available-for-sale investments A {5 1% & 1 0 (40,689) —
Interest received 2 WFI B 12,122 18,729
Dividends received from available-for-sale BRI EHERE 2
investments % B A 4,121 1,636
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME WMERREZ
plant and equipment FriS5K38 - 31
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWZE WEKFE - (755)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREFTH 2RSS FHE 42,051 358,148
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GmEBEERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Dividends paid ERIRE (52,171) (52,171)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of EN—KWEAGZ
a subsidiary FEIERRAR R A s 2 AR B - (10,181)
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ARBEERH RS (52,171) (62,352)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRBEELEEEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS R 5 466,826 27,764
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —HA—BZBEER
AT 1ST JANUARY RELEEER 697,398 688,203
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEE SR IR e i 2 (12,092) (18,569)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS +=ZBA=+—-HB2ZzRER
AT 31ST DECEMBER, HEEEER -
represented by cash and bank balances B3R & K ERTT 45 5% 1,152,132 697,398
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W el

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office and
principal place of business is Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-
12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are property
development and investment, and securities trading and
investment.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"):
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation

Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIAI & B AR A Al
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE —T— X F+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERHE RELIER] (BARMK

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HMEZEZRA) )

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' (BB BRLEER) $9% ST A

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (BEMBREER) £15% REXFANUER
Customers and the related HEE:
Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases? (BEMBRSEN) £16% HE?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classifications and (BEBREED) 208  BELNRSZNIER
Measurement of (BETK) HE!

Share-based Payment
Transactions!

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 (FARMBRERA) 245 & (BERBREER)
“Financial Instruments” (B3T%) FoR[eMIAIA
with HKFRS 4 (BB REEN)
“Insurance Contracts”" 4% RIS 4

—HER"
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution (BERBRBREER) $10% BEZHRHBENFH
and HKAS 28 of Assets between R (BHeitgl) £28% RBC¥REEMNE
an Investor and its (B3] K) HIEAS
Associate or Joint
Venture?®
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initative* (BHEosER) S75 BET T
S HEY)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred (BHEOER) $1058 AAREBREDELR
Tax Assets for (3] K) BEE
Unrealised Losses?
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 RZIBE-—NF— A BHEERBZEE
1st January, 2018. AR AE RN o

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RIBE-hFE— A BXHEERBZEE
1st January, 2019. AR AE RN o

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a 3 REETEr Bk HERBY EEHM A
date to be determined. o

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 RIBE—+F A BHEERBZEE
1st January, 2017. HARS A o

HKFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the (BHEPBMELR) $953|ATHBA

classification and measurement of financial assets, R EE BMEakE —RBEreiEzR

financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and B EREN D BRI S HIBTE-
impairment requirements for financial assets.

All recognised financial assets that are within the (BHABERELER]Y FOSE&HERNZFT

scope of HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at BRI EE  HB1HEHKA

either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt S AEESE-BEMS BiEEEERX
investments that are held within a business model LB SNBSS REAENmMEENE

whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, FEWE REAYTNAGRAREEAES Y

and that have contractual cash flows that are solely NMEMELAENBRERECEREEE  —

payments of principal and interest on the principal R E 12 @ ST H SR IR S Ak NS 2 o I

outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost EHEEIEEVERTIAE EA N AR

at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt WEAHESRERHERKEE L&

instruments that are held within a business model whose BEANKISHNETCHEEE YRS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ =T —NF+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, the Group may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held-for-trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.
Regarding the Group’s other financial assets and
financial liabilities, it is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 was issued to establish a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue’,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIAI&BEH R A Al
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required under
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have impact
on the amounts reported as the timing of revenue
recognition may be affected and more disclosures
relating to revenue are required. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until a detailed review has been
completed.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and comply with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) which concern
the preparation of consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ =T —NF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value
in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group losses control of the subsidiary. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the date of the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

The associate’s financial statements used for the
application of equity method of accounting are prepared
using uniform accounting policies with the Group for
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the associate to bring its accounting
policies into line with those used in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIAI&BEH R A Al

3. FEEHHEX

RMBLRZRE

A B A B 2 1 & 32 A AR A T E 28 B
MEBEIARR BT EMRRE -

REE QT s

BERREAREHETEEATEN
Efg  BUFRWBRRINAELEN
Eih  EARERAENTRETOMBE R
REBFORTE LB SRR - B2 BN
H A2 BUR -

BERRcRXEREERABENESS
FORRT AR EHR B M HRERA - RIFER
& RBE R RINRE R RAARER A W
BRR DB - BER TR - IAFER A
SEREEBE AR BRREMEMEE K-
EARKBMAEBREQABEERESFNHEL
REZEE N E 2 Rl NREE R
REFTEZE— P FE - A KB AR
B QR EEA RS ERT AR
HX I BIZRRR SN B 1R R R -

&R o & FTOA AR BB 2 1 R) 2 B 5
R AEEERERAUBRA TR RS
HEAR S HR - BT E S
BREZHBHRELARE REBE
BUSR B 7K 5 (B 4R B B 755 SR 3R R P AR A A
_ﬁo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in an associate (continveq)

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recongition and Measurement” are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment
in an associate. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ =T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continvea)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the three categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held-for-trading investments if
they have been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from remeasurement recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the “net gain (loss) in held-for-trading
investments” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including other
receivables and cash and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
maturity investments or loans and receivables.
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through consolidated
statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through consolidated statement of profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continvea)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when
and only when, the Group’s obligations discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for capital
appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so as to
write off the cost of investment properties using the
straight-line method. No depreciation is provided in
respect of freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties (continueq)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than freehold
land are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Buildings on freehold land are depreciated over 40
years by equal annual installments.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 8%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case
the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

When the minimum lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or
estimated net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers. Payments received from purchasers prior to
this stage are recorded as receipts in advance under
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Group's rights to receive payment have been
established.

Revenue from sales of held-for-trading investments is
recognised on a trade date basis.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
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e MR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD")) at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE =T —XF+_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of the assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interest are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ - — NF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that has been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when
they relate to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case, the current
tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Retirement benefits schemes

Contributions payable by the Group to its defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE =T —XF+_A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The key source of estimation uncertainty that can
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial information in the next financial year is
disclosed as follows:

Valuation of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are measured at the lower
of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to Directors’ estimates
based on the prevailing market condition. The Group
has properties held for sale in Shanghai and Macau,
which exposes the Group to certain price risk. If
the net realisable value is less than the cost, further
impairment on the properties held for sale has to be
made. Management is optimistic about the prospect of
the Group's investment in the property sector and it has
been cautious in formulating and reviewing regularly the
Group’s business plan.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE ==

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuea)

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of the tax vary amongst different jurisdictions
in various cities in the Mainland China and the Group
has not finalised its land appreciation tax calculation
and payments with any local tax authorities in the
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgment
is required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation tax and its related income tax provisions.
The Group recognised the land appreciation tax based
on management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will have impact on the
income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax is
finalised with local tax authorities.

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation technique that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of investment properties. If there
are changes in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of unobservable market data, such changes
will impact the fair value. Notes 6(c) and 17 provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically by considering the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
When necessary, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

5.
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2016 2015
—E—-XRE —T—FHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets MKEE
Held-for-trading investments FEKRE 27,369 433,437
Loans and receivables (including ERREWER (2F
cash and cash equivalents) HekReFMEER) 1,175,448 718,833
Available-for-sale investments A HHERE 556,689 334,880
Financial liabilities MBARE
Amortised cost N 10,353 10,376
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE T —XF+_A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risks management

objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading
investments, other receivables, cash and bank
balances and trade and other payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market Risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to market risks
or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risk. Details of each type of market risks are
described as follows:

(i)  Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
which is a foreign currency other than
functional currency (i.e. HKD) of the relevant
Group entities (see Note 21). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE =T —XF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risks management
objectives and policies (continuea)

Market Risks (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2015: 5%) appreciation/depreciation in
HKD against RMB.

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$307,000
(2015: HK$16,121,000)

Interest rate risk

The Group has minimal interest rate risk as
most of the interest bearing financial assets
are bank deposits. As the Group does not
expect material fluctuation in interest rate
movement, the exposure to interest rate risk
is insignificant.

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks and closely
monitor the price changes.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been

determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ - — NF+_A=1+—HILFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risks management

objectives and policies (continuea)

Market Risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% (2015: 10%)
higher/lower:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$2,285,000 (2015:
approximately HK$36,192,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments; and

o other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$51,600,000 (2015: approximately
HK$33,488,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of
listed available-for-sale investments.

Credit Risks

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk, which will cause a financial
loss to the Group, arises from the carrying amount
of respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Besides concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks and
security brokers with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risks management
objectives and policies (continuea)

Liquidity Risks

The Group expects to have sufficient funds to meet
its financial obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group
will consider raising bank borrowings when it is
necessary.

Liquidity table

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay.
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AEEBHFAERMES RARE
IR B AR M BER

EEERDECRARTE ~NEH
EEMMREEERARRZIERS
MR FERB K FABNARE
B EmE R ERERERIN
RE-AEBENAFTEREZER
RITEE-

mBEE X

TRFAVNAKRENTHBABZIHRT
BRBPBER LR DIREARE
RAERERKEEVHABNRT
HEIZ RBEHB SR EMHIET o

Less than

3 months Total

SR=@A et

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
As at 31st December, 2016 R-E—RFEF+=-A=+—H

Trade and other payables FEHE 5 BR K & B b FE T BR 3K 10,353 10,353
As at 31st December, 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=1+—H

Trade and other payables EAESERAREMENER 10,376 10,376
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE T —XF+_A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial instruments
are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with fair value
as at 31st December

6. TR TH

(c) ERMTRAZAFVEFE

AEEHS BT AREREHAK
R ATE S TRRHEEROE
EEZZEMTAY D TE (K5
2 78 PR B L1 1 S 0 A B
B o

BR+=-—A=+-—8H
BEELTRAESZ
A¥E Valuation
2016 2015 Fair value techniques
Financial assets —E-RE —ZE—FHF  hierarchy and key inputs
HK$°000 HK$'000 fRE BT R
MBEE FET TAET  AFERK TEBMAHE
Held-for-trading 27,369 433,437 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
investments active market
BERE B WE BTS2 E
Available-for-sale 516,000 334,880 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
investments active market
AHEEERE E—& RIERR T 5 2 RIE
543,369 768,317

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has no financial instruments measured at fair
value classified as Level 2 or 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in
both years.

Except the financial assets that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors
of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 EHZE =%

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 7

AND REVENUE

e MR RME
—~EHZA=t+—RILEE

KEWZHEBERIA

2016 2015
— R —AREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Sales of properties HEMSE 3,207 904
Leasing of properties ik ES 474 1,051
REVENUE WA 3,681 1,955
Sale proceeds from disposal of held-for- HEFERE 2 HE W=
trading investments 573,615 372,545
Dividend income from available-for-sale A HEIRE 2 BB WA
investments 38,220 19,118
Dividend income from held-for-trading FEREZRERA
investments 18,016 7,560
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM ReEWm AR
OPERATIONS 633,532 401,178

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments, based
on information reported to the chief operating decision
makers, the Executive Directors of the Company, for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance

assessment are as follows:

Property Development -
and Investment

Securities Trading and —
Investment

sales and leasing of properties

dealings in held-for-
trading investments

and available-for-sale

investments

T RER
AEBRBIEHEREE DARAYZ

POES MEHZARSEERS AR
REAFEZERNMEL 2 EERRED
BT

NEZRRREKRE - HERBE®ME
EFEEARE - HEFERAR
TR ERE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ - — NF+_A=1+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. 7EER »

Property
Development Securities
and Trading and
Investment Investment Total
MERR HEEE
kRE kRE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TERT
2016 —EB—RE
Gross proceeds from operations  E& W HEEE
- segment revenue Bk L ON 3,681 629,851 633,532
Results E 4
Segment profit waR bl 1,131 139,028 140,159
Other income Hablg A 12,802
Unallocated expenses T oERY (20,821)
Share of results of an associate i NS 187,883
Profit before taxation BT AR A 320,023
2015 —T-0F
Gross proceeds from operations & & 5 A5
- segment revenue -2 WA 1,955 399,223 401,178
Results E 4
Segment (loss) profit DR (BE) & H (2,071) 30,712 28,641
Other income H A 20,909
Unallocated expenses AP HnERAY (21,729)
Share of results of an associate el NS e 141,306
Profit before taxation BR % AL A 169,127
Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is BofER A BEESEERRPAORERAZ
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated ZYFATRIN MED 2 GFTBORE

statement of profit or loss, the accounting policies of
the reportable segments are the same as the Group'’s
accounting policies described in Note 3. For details
of reconciliation of segment revenue to the Group’s
revenue of HK$3,681,000 (2015: HK$1,955,000), please
refer to Note 7. Segment profit (loss) represents the
results of each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including depreciation of leasehold
land and building for corporate function, directors’
salaries, share of results of an associate and other
income. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Assets and Liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable segments:

TEER »

BEERER

UTBAEERBRENEI D ZEER
BEZA:

Property
Development Securities
and Trading and
Investment Investment Total
MERR HEEE
kgE kREE oy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTHET FET THERT
2016 —E-XF
Assets BE
Segment assets R éf B 53,169 588,769 641,938
Interest in an associate N NI e 921,610
Unallocated assets T\%’Vﬁ EE 1,186,923
Consolidated total assets REBEE 2,750,471
Liabilities =L |
Segment liabilities DEEE 18,369 - 18,369
Unallocated liabilities NFOEEE 155,250
Consolidated total liabilities meBatE 173,619
2015 —E—hfF
Assets BE
Segment assets "*E é{F 56,037 782,735 838,772
Interest in an associate R—REEE R R 2 859,425
Unallocated assets T ?"*ﬁéfﬁ 721,303
Consolidated total assets IRRRAEE 2,419,500
Liabilities &8fE
Segment liabilities PEERE 18,962 522 19,484
Unallocated liabilities NFOEEE 157,234
Consolidated total liabilities HRAEBEAE 176,718
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e MR A

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE T —XF+_A=1+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 2HEER»
Assets and Liabilities (continvea) EENEE 2
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances ATEESBEEZ P BERBESEER:

and allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable segments ° MIELCENEZHE T RES
other than leasehold land and buildings for MN—REE AT 2z ELEFRIE
corporate function, interest in an associate, BE - BHENRETEELRECED
deferred tax assets, cash and bank balances and BE 7 H{th & U7 BE T K2 FE S R IE AN
other receivables and prepayments for corporate FMEBEEHN I PEREEESHELLE: &

function; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments ° MEMBREB -ELEHRBAERIED
other than tax payable, deferred tax liabilities Ehee v M EN R R IBIZE N IB
and other payables and accruals for corporate SN B RBEH SR ESRE D -
function.

Other Information HER

Property
Development Securities
and  Trading and
Investment Investment Total
MEER HHEEE
k&RE kRE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET THERT
Amounts included in the measure of &F AFtE 2485 F
segment profit (loss) or segment (BRI EEE
assets: B FKIE -
2016 —E-RF
Depreciation of property, WME - BEREBITE
plant and equipment 16 - 16
2015 —_T—hfF
Depreciation of property, ME BEREENE
plant and equipment 16 - 16
Gain on disposalfwritten off HE/MEME - BER
property, plant and equipment s 4 - 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE =T —XF+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7HEHR »
Revenue From Major Products and FEEMRRBUWA
Services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from NTRAEEFEERMMRRBEAZS
its major products and services: #
2016 2015
—E—XE —_T-1F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales of properties HEMSE 3,207 904
Leasing of properties bk ES 474 1,051
3,681 1,955
Geographical Information wESBEER
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, AEBEZEBURED BFIKFPEA
Macau and the Mainland China. #h o

The Group’s revenue from external customers is based
on the location of properties sold and leased out and
information about its non-current assets (excluding
deferred tax assets and available-for-sale investments)
by geographical location of the assets and operation of
the associate are detailed below:

AEBUAMEHERBHEZ MR 2
HIMHEWAFIIMT - FHREEME
mEBzER)E D2 IE
MBEE (TEREELEHBEEENAH#I

i (BREBER

ERE)ERIFHIDT :

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HIMEEWA FRBEE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—2-A% "T-1f ZB-X"E _—T-nf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET FHET
Hong Kong BB - - 453 604
Macau JEFY = = 34,442 35,338
The Mainland China FR B A 3,681 1,955 921,615 859,431
3,681 1,955 956,510 895,373
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B BRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ - — NF+_A=1+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8.

Information about Major Customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 and 2015,
no revenue from transactions with a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.

TEER »

FEEFESH

HE_Z—XREN-_ZE—HRF+=A
=+—HLEFE SIEKEE-ILEF
R ZWAEAREBU A Z210%3% A £ °

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftlr A
Other income included interest income of H b W A B8 1 ) B 4 A 12,696,000/ T
HK$12,696,000 (2015: HK$18,834,000). (ZZ—H % 18,834,000 L) °
10. TAXATION 10. FiIH
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Current tax: NHEAEIR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENFH 2,790 2,080
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax o B A b 1 ZE TS AR 1,202 2,436
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax /B Rith + i I EFY

(“LAT”) 650 178
Mainland China Withholding Tax R B A b A B S 3,500 8,509
Macau Complementary Tax RIS T - 376
(Overprovision) underprovision MAEFE (BF) TR

in prior years:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBREH (2 (5)
Mainland China Withholding Tax R B R A B 0 SR - (9,049)
Macau Complementary Tax BT SR T - 6

8,140 4,531
Deferred tax charge (credit) (Note 25) BERHIERR (KR)
(B3E25) 6,033 (9,994)

Total tax charge (credit) for the year REEMBERYZ (KE) B8 14,173 (5,463)

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015
16.5%) of the assessable profit for the year ended 31st

December, 2016.

Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12% (2015:

12%) on the taxable income.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. BLE @)
The income tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries RPBEA B RARIBE_S— A F
for the year ended 31st December, 2016 is 25% (2015: T A=T—HLEFEZSEHER25%
25%). (ZZE—HF:25%) °
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the RFEEzMBRAZEGEEER 2B
profit before taxation (excluding share of results of an AR (T EEEGHE R R EE) ¥
associate) per the consolidated statement of profit or BRIAT :

loss as follows:

2016 2015
—E—XR¥ —ZET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation (excluding share of K& BIE F (B &G
results of an associate) RENAIEE) 132,140 27,821
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax A B A 3 1 SE R 1S B 4R T K
at the tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) 25% (ZE—HE:25%)
AE IR 33,035 6,955
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEBHEBAZ
tax purpose MG e (16,353) (8,415)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR H 2
tax purpose MG e 2,804 3,771
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMEBEB UG E 64 4,455
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LRIARERZ
not recognised MIEEE (13,981) (290)
Overprovision in prior years wEFEBERE 2 (9,048)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R Hth RIARE R AL L ~ KB
operating in other jurisdictions RATRB Rz E (1,438) (1,625)
Mainland China LAT rh [ ;A 4+ b 3 (E A 650 178
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings AR B A B 2 A B 2
of a Mainland China associate R IRBFE 4 2 BT TR 9,394 (1,444)
Tax charge (credit) for the year REEREZL (FKE) 14,173 (5,463)
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 25. EEB BB S 5E25 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HE T —XF+_A=1+—HILFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FEEF
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-—RFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT

Profit for the year has been arrived FERAME R (FFA) -

at after charging (crediting):
Staff costs 8 T A 2,911 2,941
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K& Fll5+ &) = 3 36 44
Total staff costs (including Directors’ BT AR

emoluments) (BIEESEHE) 2,947 2,985
Auditor's remuneration % ELRD B & 1,092 1,047
Depreciation of property, M HWENEEBETE

plant and equipment 1,047 1,047
Gain on disposal/written off property, & MEEME - BB &

plant and equipment R W E - (4)

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EERESME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director %Z:?:g*/\_\i}%:%@fﬁiJr:
for the year ended 31st December, 2016 and 2015 A=T HIEFRENIENTS

EEzBewmT:

are set out below:
Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits
and other scheme Total
Name of Director Fees bgnefits contributions emoluments
FEoORRR  BRAKER
EEng ik HiEF  FEIZHX MemsE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BT FTERT TER TER
2016 = i
Non-executive Chairman FUTER
Ge Peijian BiER - - - -
Executive Directors HITESR
Hsu Feng % M - - - -
Albert Tong ) - 921 18 939
Wang Fahua TRE - - - -
Fan Suxia BERE - 917 18 935
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sung Tze-Chun AOAE - - - -
Independent Non-executive ~ BIYFHTES
Directors
Liang Jung-chi REH 87 - - 87
Zhang Hong Bin =00 113 - - 13
Sit Hing Kwok F LY 107 - - 107
307 1,838 36 2,181
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

BEEREEME o

(@) EEM=E

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme Total
Name of Director Fees  benefits contributions  emoluments
) O OFMoREER RIET )
RSk ok Hi@a  sHElz M i< 458
HK$'00! HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET
2015 —T-0F
Non-executive Chairman FHITER
Ge Peijian B - - - -
Executive Directors 2}1/?—}5%
Hsu Feng fr - _ _ _
Albert Tong R, - 921 18 939
Wang Fahua ?jﬁ%& — — - -
Fan Suxia BERE — 926 20 946
Resigned Director BIE=E
Chen Ganjin PR & & - - _ _
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sung Tze-Chun AOE - - - -
Independent Non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Liang Jung-chi REE 82 - = 82
Zhang Hong Bin BB 108 = = 108
Sit Hing Kwok i 102 = = 102
292 1,847 38 2177

No Director waived any emoluments for either year.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Group. The
Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors of
the Company.

Other than the Directors listed above, there was no
senior management entitled to any emoluments for
either year.

1A R B 4 JE 1 158 48 25 28 3R A 4]

S
i e

AR TESCMERRBREEH
BEANEEERAEEMN RSN
e LMBUFATEZTZHMER
EFERARREFREANRS
S A o

RAESFEAR Bk D& SN W
=R EEABWEE A -
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e MR A

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 & ZE ==

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
of the Group included three (2015: three) Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. For the remaining two (2015:
two) highest paid individuals, their individual
emoluments do not exceed HK$1,000,000 each
and are as follows:

—RNFTZA=+—HLFE

12. EEREEME »

(b) EERSHMAL

RAFE AEBRAMZSFHMMA
ITEE=ZZ(ZE—RF :=ZR)E
2 HEZHNEER EXH AR
M- TRE(ZCE—RF WEL)
EamaMATSEBZHWTER
1,000,000 7T EM & 5B T -

2016 2015
— N —E-—RFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Salaries, allowances and i - = B8 & H b2 F
other benefits 766 736

Retirement benefits scheme IRIRABE A ET 8 2 73K

contributions = -
766 736

13. DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.05 (2015: HK$0.02) per share amounting to
approximately HK$130,428,000 for the year ended
31st December, 2016, subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In June 2016, a dividend of HK$0.02 per share
amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 in
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2015.

In June 2015, a dividend of HK$0.02 per share
amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 in
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2014.
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e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2016 of
HK$305,586,000 (2015: HK$174,126,000) and on the
number of 2,608,546,511 (2015: 2,608,546,511) shares
in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there
was no dilutive ordinary share outstanding during both
years.

14.

BRAER

EREARFTIBEAEREZ T —X
F+_A=+—HLFEARRREEF
A A JE 5% F1305,586,0008 T (=
— R 174,126,000/ 70 ) R EARN 2 3
1T A% 82,608,546, 511K (—Z T — A & :
2,608,546,511/% ) st & o

P 5 5 14 [ 0 30 8 2 3% 4 ) 4
RS - SR 4 2 51|45 AR 14 B o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% -HERZE
Land  Furniture and Motor
and buildings equipment vehicle Total
THREF  BRRRE RE oL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR FHET TAL
COST A
At 1st January, 2015 W-ZE—hF—A—H 9,598 1,117 244 10,959
Addition NE - - 755 755
Disposal & = (18) = (18)
Written-off g - (17) (244) (261)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR - (3) - (3)
At 31st December, 2015 RZZ-RE+-A=1—H 9,598 1,079 755 11,432
Exchange realignment R - (4) - (4)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—R"E+=A=+—H 9,598 1,075 755 11,428
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st January, 2015 W-_E—HF—H—H 2,492 545 219 3,256
Provided for the year FEREE 707 189 151 1,047
Elimination on written-off/disposal RIS/ M E R # - (33) (219) (252)
Exchange realignment B 8% - (4) - (4)
At 31st December, 2015 RZE-AF+=-A=+—H 3,199 697 151 4,047
Provided for the year FREE 707 189 151 1,047
Exchange realignment BEHAE - (3) - (3)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—~E+-A=1—H 3,906 883 302 5,091
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st December, 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1+-H 5,692 192 453 6,337
At 31st December, 2015 R-_E—HF+-A=1—H 6,399 382 604 7,385

Annual Report 2016 4 fZ &5 1 02



W el

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BEREE =
(Continued)
For the land and buildings, within which carrying value ML REFME  BREEE 154,000
of HK$154,000 (2015: HK$169,000) are freehold land B (ZE—HF:169,0008TT) BFFAE
and buildings and HK$5,538,000 (2015: HK$6,230,000) KA KR 2+ R F - ™5,538,00078
are leasehold land and buildings under short-term 7T (ZZF—HF 6,230,000/ 7T) &% H
lease. All land and buildings are located outside Hong MAORRZBEETHREF A TR
Kong. BFHUREERIN -
16. GENERAL INFORMATION OF 16. B A8 2 —REH
SUBSIDIARIES
Details of subsidiaries at 31st December, 2016 are as REZB-AF+ A=+ -BENEA
follows: aZEﬂ%ﬂD—F :
Paid up issued
ordinary Proportion of
Place of share capital/ issued capital/registered
incorporation registered capital and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
\ MRERG ARRRE
HMALR EBRBA, ERTRA,/
WEARERE ggw AfER AMEERRREL X TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE B3
% %
Advance Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
REREARAA EH 28T REEK
Celion Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
RBABARES 1= REEK
Chiefast Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
HRERERAA B 28T REEK
Crown Map International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
B 17T RERK
Forty Enterprises Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
EELEBRAA B 20,000/ 7 RERK
Giant Hero Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
BA 10,000/ 7T REER
Jia Feng (Macau) Companhia Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Property holding
Limitada
X2 (ORM)BERAA P 25,0002 % NERE
Joker Investments Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
BEREBRAT £ 20,000/ REER
Kingpart Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
services
YUREERLA B 10,0007 7T REREARE
Paringa Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
REABRES (E REZK
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For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=+—HILFE

16. GENERAL INFORMATION OF 16. B ARz —MRER @

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Paid up issued

ordinary Proportion of
Place of share capital/ issued capital/registered
incorporation registered capital and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
‘ MRER ARRRE
SMALR LERRE, BRiTRA/
WEARERE ik AfER AMEARRREL X TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %
Parklane Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
BREXERLA BB 10,000 7T REER
Plus Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 In member’s voluntary
liquidation
HEER A Bt BT ER=ENE -G
Rivera Holdings (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 - 60  Property development
- Sociedade de Investimentos E and investment
Fomento Predial, Limitada / i
N &8 CRF) BRAR R 100,000/ 9% NEERRRE
Rivera Management (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of secretarial
and administrative
\ i \ o services
I ER (BE)BRAT Eit 10,000% 7T RAENE RITBRE
Rivera (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
services
NEA (REA)BRAF BB 10,000/ 7T REAE AR
Royton Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EREBRES 1= RELZK
Shine Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and
securities trading
HRARLNE BB 4,000,000 7T REBREEFEE
SOFIL - Sociedade de Fomento Macau MOP2,500,000 60 40  Property holding and
Industrial de Macau, Limitada investment )
BRAIXERERAA R 2,500,000:£F# NERFERRE
Superwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
SEERARAA B 10,0008 7T RERK
HERBEFERARA Mainland China US$16,290,000 = 9353  Property development
(Shanghai Boulevard Real and management,
Estate Co., Limited) (Note a) and investment
i holding
PBREEXRBR AT (Hita) hEIR 16,290,000 7T MEZREREEN
REER
HEREREERER AT Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 9353  Investment
(Note b) (Fifzb) RE A AR management
50,000,000 REEE
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16.

17.

GENERAL INFORMATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note a: The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture with
limited liability established in the Mainland China.
Note b: The subsidiary is a limited company established in the

Mainland China and solely funded by a foreign invested
enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at any
time during the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The cost and carrying value of the Group’s investment
property at 31st December, 2016 and 2015 were
HK$28,563,000. The investment property is a piece of
freehold land located in Macau.

The development controls of the investment property
are subject to change with reference to revised planning
directives under “Urban redevelopment programme of
the Northern District of Taipa Area” drawn up by the
Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau in
November 2013. Should the said plan be implemented,
there will be an increase in plot ratio of the investment
property and the fair value of the Group’s investment
property at 31st December, 2016 was estimated as
HK$627,000,000 (2015: HK$627,000,000).

The investment property is categorised as Level 3
under the fair value measurement hierarchy. There
was no transfer into and out of Level 3 during the
year. The fair value has been arrived at using direct
comparison approach carried out by an independent
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation
was determined by reference to comparable sales
transactions with due allowance for estimated
construction costs that will be expended to carry out
the development and the estimated developer’s profit
margin. There has been no change of the valuation
technique used in the prior year.

The highest and best use for the investment property is
development of residential property and the Group will
explore feasible plans to fully realise the development
potential of the investment property.

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIAI&BEH R A Al

16.

17

—RNFTZA=+—HLLFE

B AT 2 —MREF »

Hiita - UhHMEB A RS — K B A ZH
FHINREBEERAR

Kiidb - &tf‘ﬁ%"ﬂ%-%&ﬁiﬂlﬁﬂﬁiiﬁ’ﬂ
SINEREREEANBERRA

BB HA 2R 2k 5 A {E f] B ]

RS
WEEH$§i21ﬁ g5 0

REWF

AEBZEHREMER_ZT—RER_Z
—HE+ A=+t HZRAREERE
428,563,000/ T ° % R B W% A —RAL
FOBPIA KA EREFH 2 Lo

&&é%%Z%@EﬂM%%ﬁﬁim
THEGRR_ZE—=F+—AtlTZ
<<U¥il:|£%ﬁ‘mtﬁé/éu+ilﬁ R BT Z
AERT IR BT R T AEB) o i L5181 5
NEBIT ZEMESEMLELE M
RZZE—RNF+_A=+—H ~A&EEK
B 2 R FEME /627,000,000 7T
(Z=—FH % :627,000,000% 7T ) °

= 55 4

REVERLAVEFESFAOBRRS
Ao EWIHW¥LA“_%i§“_
Wi AP ETDREAREY EEREE
MAERRA C BERLEBOLETE - A RMA
EN2ETELRZHEER S Kt AR
RBERZEFHEERAEEE B BE - A
Fibst B RE 2 ERMNBRMETE - 5
ZIEERMTEBEFES EEH -

BREMEzERARERERERES
WE AEBEBRAAITZAENERE
RaRBNE2BERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. REtE N B 2 E#H

2016 2015

—E—XRF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Cost of investment in an associate REEE RAZIRE KA 214,224 214,224

Share of post-acquisition profits, JE 15 Y B 12 ) A

net of dividends received (OB B WA B 713,765 595,879
Exchange difference arising from BREBENRRELEY

translation of an associate ME 5 = &E (6,379) 49,322

921,610 859,425

Details of the associate of the Group at 31st December,

2016 and 2015 are as follows:

AEER-_ZE—"ER_ZT—RF+=
A=+—BzZHMERARZFBHET:

Percentage
of interest in
registered
capital
and voting
Place of power
Form of registration Paid up indirectly
business and registered held by the Principal
Name of associate structure operation capital Company activities
PN
BFEEMER
HfEZR xR
BENTER EBEBER A% it B BREMER RERLE TEXH
Shanghai Zhangjiang Sino-foreign Mainland RMB370,830,000 37% Property
Micro-electronics equity joint China development
Port Co. Ltd. venture and management
EERIMEFS HONEERE B Ayt ARE 37% MEERRER
ARADE 370,830,0007C
The principal activities of the associate are property BMERRCEIBEBRMELRRNER

development and management and it is the Group’s
strategic investment in Shanghai,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong New Area. The

W AR EER EEH CERIARREER
TERRER) 2 HREE - M A AT
REAEER LTSN EER

especially in

associate enables the Group to enhance exposure to

the property market.
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continuea)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group'’s associate is set out below:

18. REt&E N T 2R o)
AREB Z7HE N NR 2 HEERE R T

The associate is accounted for using the equity method REEEMBHREBE E AR AEREA
in these consolidated financial statements. B e
2016 2015
—B-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current assets MEEE
Properties held for sale FEYH 1,466,488 169,461
Properties under development BRPYE 18,915 2,617,519
Cash and bank balances IR & MIRTT A4S R 2,535,502 1,045,529
Other current assets HimE&EE 129,197 39,986
Total current assets BRBEE 4,150,102 3,872,495
Non-current assets ERBEE 963,525 933,910
Current liabilities mEAE
LAT payable FE{S £ Hb I E R 547,511 601,071
Other current liabilities HEmmehaE 2,075,278 1,201,016
Total current liabilities rReaE 2,622,789 1,802,087
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - 681,547
Net assets BEFRE 2,490,838 2,322,771
Group's share of net assets of REEELEBE QR
the associate BEFE 921,610 859,425
Revenue A 2,411,746 330,213
Profit for the year FEm 507,793 381,909
Other comprehensive expense FEHAM 2 HERZ
for the year (150,543) (108,803)
Total comprehensive income for the year /& & mE W 4258 357,250 273,106
Dividend received from FAE W EANGE KB
the associate during the year 69,997 170,188
Group's share of results of FEASEEELEBZ QR
the associate for the year ZEE 187,883 141,306
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continuea)

19.

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in

I T/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

18. REFE NI 2R )

BB E R B BN R B RS R R AR
RN E R A 2 s R (E 2 $ Bk -

the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:
2016 2015
—E-KF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net assets of the associate B N el EEFE 2,490,838 2,322,771
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBRBERNAZ
interest in the associate HE R 37% 37%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ AEBEREEE N E 2
in the associate HEREE 921,610 859,425

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AIHHERE
Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, RZEBE—RER_T—RF+_HA=+—
2016 and 2015 comprise: ARt HEREBRRE:
2016 2015
—E—RE¥ —E—0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Listed investment: EWEE:
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LM ZRAES 516,000 334,880
Unlisted equity investments FELMRAKRE 40,689 -
556,689 334,880
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19.

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AL EERE o
(Continued)
The listed equity investment represents 11.66% (2015: thEAEEESEERARE AT ([4
11.46%) of the ordinary shares of Tomson Group Limited BEEEH| — XERSEETMK Y E
(“TGL") which is a company incorporated in the Cayman B FThz AT i@l z11.66% ( —
Islands and listed on the Stock Exchange. Fair value FE—FRF 11.46% ) c FRRAEEZRA
of listed equity investment has been determined by T EEAXAEmMBEREMETE
reference to quoted market prices.
The unlisted equity investments represent investments JE TR AKREELEDLENIZE AR
in private entities. They are measured at cost less EFTRAEENSEATLEEHESE
impairment at the end of the reporting period because BAR ARREEREERAFETLER S
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so & WERESHARIGK AR RE RS
significant that the Directors of the Company are of the 5o
opinion that their values cannot be measured reliably.
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 20. FERE
Held-for-trading investments represent equity securities FEREAEESE T ZlEARES-
listed in Hong Kong.
An analysis of held-for-trading investments at 31st RZE—RNFRERE—RAF+_A=1+—
December, 2016 and 2015 by industry classification is H FERERTE BT :
set out below:
2016 2015
—B-REF —_ZT-1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Real estate investment trust BHEREETES 15,732 42,288
Properties and construction HhE AR S 8,751 287,200
Financials TEE 2,219 14,802
Conglomerates el 667 40,032
Information technology BB - 49,115
27,369 433,437
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities (i.e. HKD) to which
they relate:

21. BEeRBITEER

EREMRITEHKABRE NINA—EE
BIEMNESRE ZEBAUFZFTERAR
HEZNEE™ (BliET) -

2016 2015

—B—Rx"E —F-IF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

RMB AR 7,349 386,126

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

Included in trade and other payables and accruals
are trade payables amounting to HK$22,000 (2015:
HK$24,000) and their aged analysis as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

22. FENE ZERF BEMENERER
RFERRE

FEFE B Z RN - B Ath A RR S S FREE 3K
HABREEMNE S KEHK22,0008T (ZF
—HF 24,000/ 7T) - M HREHEH R
ZHREDTIT

2016 2015

—E-XRF —Z2—AF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

0 — 3 months ZE=1EA 22 -
Over 1 year —F P E - 24
22 24
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. IR A<
Number of Carrying
shares value
RDEE REE
HK$’000
FTET
At 1st January, 2015, NZZE—HFE—A—H"
31st December, 2015 and —E-—hE+-A=1+—HBE
31st December, 2016 —E-RF+-A=+—H
— Ordinary shares with no par value —EmELER 2,608,546,511 442,244

24. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group and the Company entered
into the following significant transactions with related
and connected parties:

(a) Compensation of key management

24, BERFRBAEALIRS

AEBREARNBENFEEBET M
BATAEUNTEZNRS:

() TEEEAEMWS

personnel
The remuneration of Directors during the year was REEEEMET -
as follows:
2016 2015
—2-—Rx"E —F-1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Short-term benefits 52 HA 48 A 2,145 2,139
Post-employment benefits RIRER 36 38
2,181 2177

Emoluments payable to the Directors of the
Company are determined by the Board or its
committee with reference to market terms,
individual responsibilities and performance.
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24. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Sharing of administrative expense

()

A substantial shareholder of the Company together
with her close family members control TGL
and that substantial shareholder has significant
influence over the Company. Accordingly, TGL is
considered as a related party of the Company. The
Company has entered into an arrangement with
TGL, pursuant to which the Group was allowed
to use the office premises and administrative
resources of TGL in Hong Kong. In return, the
Company is required to share an attributable
portion of the administrative cost of TGL on a cost
basis.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the
administrative cost of TGL shared by the Company
amounted to approximately HK$4,866,000 (2015:
HK$4,866,000). As at 31st December, 2016, no
outstanding balance (2015: Nil) was owed to TGL.

Under the Listing Rules, TGL is an associate of a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The above
transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction but is exempted from disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Trade and other payables and
accruals

As at 31st December, 2016, included in the
consolidated financial statements under
trade and other payables and accruals, was
an amount of approximately HK$10,274,000
(2015: HK$10,274,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder with significant influence over
a subsidiary of the Company. The amount
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

2. BERFRBEALRS @

(b) ZIEITHEH

(c)

FREERARA —ETERREK
Hirmemsl mazxsEERREAR
REIBBEARE B HZEEKH
WRSARRA] 2 BET - A7 E
=k e BVAE e 7 A 1 AN S
EREERZEEBETBZHA
EMERTHER - MAERM AR
ARSI AEE S ESE KE
TRER 2 &7

REZE_FE—<"F+=-A=+—8
HFE  ARRDMEEZEERE ZTTH
&M #/54866,0008 T (—E—H
% :4,866,000/87L) cR=ZT—RF
+-—A=+—H8 ARaATELXN
ZEEBEEMNREBE(ZE—RF:
) o

RE(EHRAD  ZEEERAR
AZ—UEERRIBBEAL A
EXSBRFEMERD  HEER
BT (EMHRAND) 2 WEMBL
PERHEAE 2 SRE ©

BB 5 R - b AR
RFERME

R—EBE—RF+-_A=+—8"
HREVEHRRZENESERNR
tEMERRRERREY 5 —
#910,274,0008 L (= —H&F :
10,274,000/ 70 ) FEf T E AR AR —
XMBARIAI{TEERTE 2 I
AR R A FRIE - ZEFUR A EE R
REREETEER-

i Ot P
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25. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES o5 EEFIIE (BE)EE
The followings are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities AR AR #& £ HAR K B R A AR R
recognised by the Group and movement thereon during EBEPMAZELERB(EE)BABLRE
the current and prior reporting periods: el
Undistributed
earnings of
Mainland
Tax effect on China’s
LAT associate Total
HE R
THRERZ BENTZ
BT E R REF st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THERT TERT THET
At 1st January, 2015 R_ZE—RF—H—H (16,973) 57,009 40,036

Credited to consolidated statement  R#RAIBH IR A

of profit or loss (41) (1,444) (1,485)
Credited to consolidated statement 3% {5 7 B () 3 % 2 11 480 5 B

of profit or loss upon the Mainland st AGZABRE

China withholding tax paid - (8,509) (8,509)
Exchange realignment B 5 38 B 769 - 769
At 31st December, 2015 RZZE—HFE+=ZA=+T—H (16,245) 47,056 30,811

Charged to consolidated statement  R4R& B KA

of profit or loss 139 9,394 9,533
Credited to consolidated statement 37 < A B pAy b AR 5 30 480 5 s

of profit or loss upon the Mainland st A&ZARHRE

China withholding tax paid - (3,500) (3,500)
Exchange realignment BE 5, 8 B 782 - 782
At 31st December, 2016 R-ZB-R"FE+=A=+-8 (15,324) 52,950 37,626
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances MBI BREREMIEZ REFRIBERD
for financial reporting purposes: T :

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—T0%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TET
Deferred tax assets BEFRIEEE (15,324) (16,245)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE 52,950 47,056
37,626 30,811
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DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$24,543,000
(2015: HK$80,212,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of these tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$1,504,000
that will expire on or before 31st December, 2019
(2015: HK$1,248,000 that will expire on or before 31st
December, 2018). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 1st June, 2012 (the
‘2012 Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set up for the
primary purpose to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to the Group or
any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest
(“Invested Entity”). Subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board, the 2012
Scheme shall be valid and effective till 31st May, 2022.
After the expiry of such valid period, no further options
will be offered or granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options
to (i) any employee or proposed employee (whether
full time or part time) of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity, including any executive director of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii)
any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iii) any customer of or supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iv) any adviser or consultant of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (v) any
person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (vi) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

25.

26.

EEHE (EE)EE @

MRS HAR - N5 B 7] A /B 88 R 2R % 7
2 AR IEEEA A24,543,0008 T (=
T — F 5 : 80,212,000 7)) ° A K 3R
2 g B DATER] - BE R ph B TR B 1B R AR
RELEHBEE AERTEBERE
BR_E—AFE+_A=+—HB=xZA
B H 7 518 491,504,000t (ZE—F
F:1,2480008 TR _ZE—NF+=
A=+—8B=zaZEH) - EtEiana ¥
MR HR 4 e o

BREsTE

AARIRE-_E——F XA —HBEEN
REREM—EHEREFSE (Z2—=
FE]) BRY T —FHEHTE
BENERAMECHBE ATHASE KK
SEFEBEEMREEMEE ([FEE
W) 2 ERMEL BB R E - A F]
VTEEREASRERIXEZRIE
RB®RIEZTE — T ——F88AX
BT —FRA=T—HIE - RAKH
[EREBTEBTRER TIRLEER
BT —FHENGREEME S
HESEEEEA M-

BRE—ZT——F5r2 EFHAMAMNRTA
TR ERRE : () AEBEERKE QT
R ERE Z ERIEEHERE (T
WEBSER) BEAEETMAKER
AR EMAIRE#E 2 EARNITES 5k
(i) KEBERIK B A 7] S AEfA] Fris & #
B EMFERTES (BEBLIERNITE
F) k(i) AEBEMAKE R R EM
FIiEMBE 2 ENEPRAASEBEMA
FKERRSERATIRERBIREE YK
RS 2 IR : Sk (iv) AEBEMRKER
Al SR FTIX A M8 2 A A SR
B 8 (v) MANEREE AR E A R
BEHRBRHEME AEREMRNSEZ
Rl AT SHERE : S(vi) REBIEMRKE
RNEI AR AT B MRE 2 AR R - s
E BT B R F kI EEERT
BITEMBEFZEANBFEA
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options may be granted under the
2012 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 260,854,651
shares, being 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue as at 31st December, 2016,
unless shareholders’ approval of the Company has
been obtained. The total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any further
grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit must
be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option
must be made within 28 days from the date on which
such offer is made with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way of a
consideration for the grant thereof. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not be more than 10 years
commencing from the date of grant of the option.
Save as determined by the Board and stated in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. The subscription price of a share of
the Company in respect of any option that may be
granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such price
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the higher
of (i) closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of granting the option, which must be a business
day and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of granting the option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the 2012 Scheme during the year ended
31st December, 2016 and 2015. No options were
outstanding under the 2012 Scheme at 1st January,
2016 and 31st December, 2016.
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27.

28.

I T/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in November 2002. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at the specified rate
under the MPF Scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent
contributions paid and payable to the MPF Scheme
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are members
of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
government. The employer and the employees are
obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage
of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the specified contributions.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Group
elected to receive scrip dividends of approximately
HK$34,099,000 (2015: HK$17,482,000) in lieu of
cash dividends from the Group’s available-for-sale
investments in TGL.

27.

28.

RIRBRIFE

AEBR_ZT_F+—-AREEE (&
HERTEEEE G 2 E—IREHE
ATEEE ([RESTE]) BB
SeEERAREEENRARA LM
—BIUERANESHAETE - RIERE
B ZRR BERREHERERR
e st IFT AR L RAEH K

KRB RERMEF BB S8 2
FIEAEEIZRESFERAFTRHZ
RBEMREM TRERFTE 2R

AR E 2z B A E 815 58 R 5 B
JiF & 9 2 B 3R B 38 SRE fH FOR IR A8 A ET
SIZKE-REEHRA BEREES
BEERERFEZETAENERHR K
SEHUNZZRREHNFE ZHE—FE
AIEHRTBAH R

TEFRERS

BE_Z—XRE+-_A=+—RHIEE"

7R £ (B35 12 I ER DA BR AR 8. 434,099,000/
T (ZZE—FR 517,482,000 7C) AR E
AEBZAHEERE-SFESECES

ARE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZ T — XF+_A=1+—HILFE

29. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES

Company’s Statement of Financial
Position
At 31st December, 2016

29. KRB FHARR KRR B

NN B2
RZFE—ANFF+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HRF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
iokza FExT F&ET

Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I EN NS - -
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR 2% E 1,780 1,780
1,780 1,780

Current Assets REBEE
Held-for-trading investments FEKRE 17,160 262,166
Other receivables and prepayments X b i U BR 3k & F8 1 7018 1,507 10,852
Amounts due from subsidiaries YNGR E] 200,154 288,095
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTAE &R 576,510 160,785
795,331 721,898
Current Liabilities REBEE

Accruals TEIE TR 1,004 1,398
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT B /B A B FRIA 165,749 208,962
166,753 210,360
Net Current Assets REEERE 628,578 511,538
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2 & ERGEE & 630,358 513,318

Capital and Reserves EREREE
Share capital % 7 23 442,244 442 244
Reserves {1 188,114 71,074
Total Equity 48 R 2 630,358 513,318

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 17th March, 2017 and are signed on its

ARBZHBRARER T —LF=A
TLHHEEZRMETRETZE YA T
JIBEERKREE:

behalf by:
Ge Peijian Albert Tong
Bikfe B7E
Chairman Director
FrE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2016 HEZE—T—XF+_A=1+—HILFE

29. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29, Zx A Bl BA TS iR SR 35 1% 248 (o)
POSITION AND RESERVES (continued)

Movement in the Company’s Reserves KRR ZH@EESS
Retained
profits
RE =T
HK$’000
TExT
THE COMPANY b NN
Balance at 1st January, 2015 R-ZZE—RF—A—B&&H 140,396
Dividend paid AN H% B (52,171)
Loss for the year FEEE (17,151)
Balance at 31st December, 2015 RZE-—RF+-A=+—H#&#% 71,074
Dividend paid AN R B (52,171)
Profit for the year F & A 169,211
Balance at 31st December, 2016 R-ZB-—AXFE+ZA=+t—-HE&H 188,114
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had NEEH R NAFHEAE A H 9K G
distributable reserves of approximately HK$188,114,000 % #49188,114,000/8 T (= ZE — A &F :
(2015: HK$71,074,000). 71,074,000/ 7T ) o
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Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2016 R =Z—

NF+—H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

W el

REBRB2UWE

Investment property REYE
Approximate Estimated
Gross gross Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description Lot number site area floor area Use term interest  completion  completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)
i BRRER AEEZ fiat
#5 BRI BEE & R& HAFH i 2 BB B SR B
(FFK) (FHK)
Nossa Senhora Do Carmo, S.J., Taipa, 8869 and 5,255 20,500  Residential Freehold 60%  Vacantland  Pending for
Macau 10032 review
RPE ST k(T 8869% 5,255 20,500 = KAFHE 60% EEIR BRESR
10032
Properties held for sale SEWHE
Approximate
gross floor Lease Group’s
Description Lot number area (Sq.m.) Use term interest
BHAREER AEEZ
#fE ity B A 55 (F7K) R# HOFH B
Carparks, Lot 1 and 9,215 Carpark Long term 93.53%
Phase II, Tomson Beautiful Space, Lot 3, 17 Jiefang,
No. 56-156, Lane 50, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Guang Lan Road/Long Dong Avenue, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
REARLNE DEARMERIGHEER  BARIBRRISHRER 9,215 By =4 93.53%
BERAE /B K505562 1565 178351 £ k3K
BERE_HEN
Shop A on G/F and Basement of Block 1, 10258 1,875* Commercial Freehold 60%
Shop A on G/F and Basement and
Shop F and G on G/F of Block 2 and
Carparks on Basement,
Edificio Tao Un,
Caminho da Povoacao de Cheok Ka,
Taipa, Macau
BB ST T ERATHENE 10258 1,875* EES KAKRE 60%

F— P T AL R -
F R T ARG R -
ity FFRGHIAL R
A2 EfL

* Excluding carparks.

NEREBELL -
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Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2016 N —Z—/~"F+_-_HA=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE BMENRIFE2YE

Properties under development BRPYF
Approximate Estimated
Gross gross Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description Lot number site area floor area term interest Use completion completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)
HE  HOLER KRB fhat
i RS AR [ BOEH i BE  =RER TR EH
(F5K) (F5K)
Phase Il Lot 1, 15,335 27,603 Medium to 37% Commercial Under planning Note
ZJ Legend, 27 Jiefang, long term
No. 225, Chen Hui Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong
Shanghai, New Area
People’s Republic of China
i \RAAE LEERANE BRAE 15,335 27603  HHERH 37% B REd Wit
RIEHEER RIEHRER
RER225 AEHE
RLEF_H
Note: The development plans are still under review, the completion time Bl BEEITEER S IR ETE S
for this property project cannot be estimated at this stage. e A LE
Properties held for sale HeEyx
Approximate
gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sg.m.) Lease term interest Use
BHAREER AEEZ
#fE ity B A 57 (F7K) HOFH Bz R#
Carparks, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 49,409 Long term 37% Carpark
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 825-828, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARANE DERRIERLSHRER BRAE 49,409 =331 37% B
RIE3%825-828F K15 = 5 B B RImFHRER
TEINE
Tomson Ginkgo Garden Lot P1-P3, 64,225 for Long term 37% Residential
Lane 566, Ze Feng Road, 0002, 0013, residential;
Nangjiao, 2002 Jiefang, 59,223 for
Fengxian District, Nangiao, carparks
Shanghali, Fengxian District
People’s Republic of China
HEARLNE FEEERMGE ZEEBBE  64,225(F=ER) K 37% €
B HS66F 5 R 0002 * 0013 + 2002474 59,223( E= L)
P1-P3E
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMER

At 31st December, 2016 N —Z—/<"F+_-_HA=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

Investment properties

W el

BENRBEEZYE @

A

BREN=

Approximate

gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sg.m.) Lease term interest Use
BHAREER S 3
#fE R R (F7K) HOEH ER B#
Phase |, Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 14,517 Medium term 37% Commercial
Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port, Zhangjiang
No. 690 Bibo Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARANE LERRIERLSHRER BRAE 14,517 o 37% EES
ZRIE6905 FILHE T8 — FIsHRER
26811/
Phase I, Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 82,457 Medium term 37% Commercial
Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port, Zhangjiang
No. 690 Bibo Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARANE DEBRMERISHERR HRHE 82,457 ik 37% GES
2 RIE600T RIS F B =4 RIsHRER
2689126
Phase |, Lot 1/6, 26 Jiefang, 26,492 Medium term 37% Commercial
ZJ Legend, Zhangjiang
No. 635 Bibo Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
hEARAME DEHRME BRAE 26,492 o 37% GES
RLm AR E R RIsHRER
2RIE63R KL ET — 26813571/6
Phase Il B, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 29,372 Long term 37% Residential
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 68, 69, 72, Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 828, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARLANE LEFRIERLSHEER BRAE 29,372 =31 37% =
RIEB287768 - 69 * 7257 RISFHRER
L5 RS E=HBE Y

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIAI&BEH R A Al
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PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE

Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2016 N —Z—/~"F+_-_HA=+—H

BENRBEEZYE @

(Continued)
Investment properties (continued) REWZE @)
Approximate
gross floor area Group’s
Description Lot number (Sq.m.) Lease term interest Use
BARBEER AEEZ
#15 it B A 55 (FFK) HAFH Bz ke
Phase |V Commercial, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 6,366 Medium term 37% Commercial
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 188, Lane 238, Hi-Tech Park,
Huo Xiang Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARANE LEFRMERISHEER BRAE 6,366 o 37% EES
EE 52387 188% RIsHRER
RLZESRENHRER M1
Phase IV, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 36,049 Long term 37% Residential
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 188, Lane 238, Hi-Tech Park,
Huo Xiang Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
mEARANE LEFRIERLSHEER BRATE 36,049 R 37% =
EE 152387 188% RIsHRER
L% 2 R E I H TEINE
Commercial-cum-office, Lot P1-P3, 10,801 Long term 37% Commercial
Lane 566, Ze Feng Road, 0002, 0013, 2002 Jiefang,
Nangiao, Fengxian District Nangiao,
Shanghali, Fengxian District
People’s Republic of China
REARLNE LEEERMGH =ERMRA 10,801 =4 37% G
256677 B A A K2 0002 * 0013 + 20024745
P1-P3E
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EERBBRE

W el

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

mEeEEK

Year Ended 31st December
BZE+-A=t—-HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T——F —E-=f —T-mF —T-hE —B-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHL THL FEL THT
Gross proceeds from operations BEWmEE 245,377 146,127 352,815 401,178 633,532
Profit before taxation BR %A 323,296 310,433 212,363 169,127 320,023
Taxation A (43,858) (30,523) (19,167) 5,463 (14,173)
Profit for the year FERT 279,438 279,910 193,196 174,590 305,850
Attributable to: BT :
Owners of the Company AREERFBAEA 279,171 279,608 192,578 174,126 305,586
Non-controlling interests R R 267 302 618 464 264
279,438 279,910 193,196 174,590 305,850
2 A AN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mE M BARR R
FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31st December

R+=-A=+t-AH
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T--F —T-=F —T-mE —ZE-h%F “E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT THT THL FEL FHT
Property, plant and equipment ME BB R& 9,128 9,023 7,703 7,385 6,337
Investment property REME 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate i YN F 896,832 994,724 928,564 859,425 921,610
Deferred tax assets EERBEEE 16,884 17,385 16,973 16,245 15,324
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 378,884 413,644 338,910 334,880 556,689
Net current assets mEEETE 598,645 767,760 940,746 1,043,340 1,101,279
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 1,928,936 2,231,099 2,261,459 2,289,838 2,629,802
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 Bl A AJE(H#ER 1,855,876 2,148,791 2,183,267 2,232,101 2,566,614
Non-controlling interests ER ST T 20,174 21,071 21,183 10,681 10,238
1,876,050 2,169,862 2,204,450 2,242 782 2,576,852
Non-current liability ErEDaE 52,886 61,237 57,009 47,056 52,950
1,928,936 2,031,099 2,261,459 2,089,838 2,629,802

RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIAI & B AR A Al
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